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Financial Highlights
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Turnover
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Net profit/(loss) from ordinary
activities attributable to
shareholders
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Year ended
31 March 2003
HE-ZZ=F

=A=+—HIEtFE

HK$268.9 million
B 268.98 B T

HK$1.7 million
BEATEETT

HKO.71 cent
0. 7110

HK$201.7 million
BEE01.7TEE T
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Year ended

31 March 2002
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HK$272.6 million
BUEEDT2 6 H B T

HK$(2.8) million
B¥28)HETT

HK(1.16) cents
B (1.16)1L

HK$199.3 million
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Financial Highlights
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TURNOVER BY BUSINESS SEGMENTS
REBDEZEXEA
in percentage A 7 Lt
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Electroplating Services 39.6%
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TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
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ARTFIELD GROUP LIMITED

Chairman’s Statement
FEWSE

TO ALL SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”), | am pleased to present to shareholders the Annual
Report of Artfield Group Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2003.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 March 2003 (2002: Nil).

RESULTS

During the year under review, owing to continuous uncertainty
of the worldwide economy, the Group recorded turnover of
approximately HK$268,853,000 (2002: HK$272,556,000),
representing a slight decrease of about 1.4% as compared
with last year. In spite of poor market sentiment, the net
profit from ordinary activities attributable to shareholders for
the year improved to HK$1,722,000 (2002: net loss of
HK$2,806,000). This improving result was mainly attributable
to the Group’s continuous efforts in enhancing management
quality, controlling the operation costs and strengthening our
product and marketing strategies effectively.
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During the year, the global economic condition remained
challenging. The clocks and other related products,
accounting for about 56.1% (2002: 51.4%) of the Group’s
total turnover, recorded a stable growth of 7.7% in turnover
for the year, amounting to approximately HK$150,792,000
(2002: HK$140,057,000), which was a fairly satisfactory result
under this unpromising market conditions. Although the
intensified market competition still exerted pressure on price
and profit margin, the Group endeavors to increase the total
sales volume and amount in order to maintain its leading

position within the industry.

As for our major markets, though the outbreak of Iraq war
during the second half of the year, sales to the United States
(the “US”) and Europe markets achieved a remarkable increase
of about 11.6% and 14.1% respectively. This achievement
was mainly derived from the Group’s continuing efforts on
product development and market penetration by leveraging
with our distribution networks in overseas offices. While sales
to the Asia Pacific region including the PRC and Japan
markets represented about 2.9% of the Group’s total turnover.

Facing such adverse and turbulent operating environment,
the Group will continue to transform our sales and marketing
strategies to cope with the rapid changing market environment
and to innovate more value-for-money and fashionable-design

products to our potential customers at reasonable costs.

On the back of lackluster consumer demand, the turnover of
the lighting product segment recorded approximately
HK$9,903,000 (2002: HK$10,605,000). Besides, with
increasing domestic manufacturers in the PRC trying to
compete with other rivals in the market by plunging prices of
lighting products, the market competition becomes more

severe.
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(Cont’d)

(Cont’d)

In order to maintain our competitiveness, the Group has put
more efforts to expand the existing production capacity, to
improve the operating efficiency and maintain stringent

product quality during the year.

The result of trading segment was affected by the sluggish
market environment in Asia region, coupled with the outbreak
of severe acute respiratory syndrome (“SARS”). The turnover
of trading segments recorded a decrease of about 12.1% to
HK$94,963,000 (2002: HK$108,061,000).

By acquisition of Lens Trading Inc. in August 2002, the
Management expects that it can broaden its earning base as
well as provide a stable income source for the Group to
improve its overall profitability. Supported by the Group’s
well-established vertical integration strategy, it is expected
that the trading and distribution business will provide positive
contributions to the Group in the long-term.

In light of stiff market condition, the turnover of electroplating
(2002:
HK$13,833,000), representing a slight decrease of about

services was approximately HK$13,195,000

4.6% as compared with last year. The Management will deploy
additional resources in upgrading the electroplating techniques
and installing advanced machinery and equipment in order to
increase the capacity and enjoy the advantages of economies
of scale.
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During the year, when the worldwide economy was expected
to show signs of an incipient recovery, it was abruptly
hampered by the tensions in the Middle East and the outbreak
of SARS. The Management believes that the coming year

shall remain to be tough and challenging to most industries.

Against such an adverse economic climate, the Management
will continue to exercise effective cost management and
improve its performance and profitability by implementing
comprehensive and stringent business strategies in the

following aspects:

The Management believes that product design and
development is critical to the success of the Group’s business.
Therefore, the Group consistently puts emphasis and
consideration efforts on design concept and product

engineering processes.

In light of sophisticated customers’ demands nowadays, the
use of clocks is no longer basic necessities, instead they are
perceived as fashionable gifts and stationery items. In order
to differentiate us from the market, an in-house research and
development team is encouraged to explore their innovations
in product designs and functionalities tied with market trends.
Therefore the Group not only provides the conventional clock
products, but also broadens the product range including
lighting products, electroplating products and especially for
development of gifts and accessory items such as office and
household accessories items and giftware products like office
stationery sets, wooden music boxes, photo frames, wooden
medals and wooden jewellery boxes. The Management
believes that enriching our product offering will expand the
customer base and diversify our product portfolio in the near

future.
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(Cont’d)

Apart from enriching product mix, the Management constantly
evaluates our existing market share and its position. In addition
to establishing our OEM business in the US market, the Group
endeavors to actively expand our distribution presences in
other major geographical regions including Europe and the
PRC. By establishing our representative sales offices among
the US, the United Kingdom (the “UK”), Germany and the
PRC in the past years, the Group enjoys the advantages of
sharing the market information shortly and enhances the
distribution and processing networks in promoting our OEM
and branded products in different geographical regions. In
the meantime, the overseas offices will liaise with various
distribution agencies with extensive market coverage to gain
a foothold in major cities and thereby facilitating an efficient
expansion and distribution.

Adopting the marketing strategies targeted at different market
positioning, the Group holds several brand names to suit
customers’ needs. In order to establish our brand recognition
in the US and the PRC market, the Management will mainly
focus on promoting our branded clock product “Wehrle” to
meet the high-ranked markets. With over 180 years’ brand
history, “Wehrle” is well-renowned name in the Europe for
high quality brass clocks and wins the market reputations.
The Management believes that the opening up of the PRC
market will provide a platform for the Group to capitalize our
professional technical know-how of a high-end brand name.
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(Cont’d)

Despite the overall sluggish economy, the PRC market
maintains a steady growth. The China’s accession to the
World Trade Organization, coupled with the recent formal
signing of the Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement
between Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and the
Central Government, will facilitate the liberalization of trade in
goods and services in the mainland market. The zero-tariff
policy will certainly facilitate the Group’s further expansion

into the mainland market in the years ahead.

Along with our foundation and experiences accumulated in
the PRC market over the years, the Management always
dedicates to strengthen the sales and marketing distribution
channels in the major affluent cities such as Beijing, Shanghai,
Guangzhou and develop our own brand positions in order to
capture the arising business opportunities in the PRC.

Leveraging with over 19 years’ experiences of clock
manufacturing and its proven track record in the field, the
Group will preserve in enhancing our long-term vertical
integration processes to maximize the economies of the scale.
Therefore the Group continues to deploy more resources in
advancing production machineries and facilities, upgrading
the manufacturing technologies in order to enhance the
operation efficiency, to increase production capacity and to
maintain high quality products.

For wood product and lighting product development, the
construction of new factory premises in Gao Ming, the PRC
adjacent to the existing production facilities of the Group
was commenced in late 2002 and expected to be completed
within this coming year. The Management believes that the
new production facilities will increase the annual production
capacity in the future.
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(Cont’d)

(Cont’d)

For electroplating business, the Management plans to install
additional automatic electroplating production lines apart from
existing facilities and reinforce new electroplating techniques
to cater for high expectations from customers and growing
demands. In long-term perspective, the Group has equipped
sufficient and specialized production manpower in our
production plants in China which will be capable to meet the
tight production schedules and increased production orders.

Looking ahead, the Management will prudently identify any
opportunity to expand the scope of the existing businesses
through merger and acquisition of other related businesses
or projects with high profitability returns after evaluation of
existing business and future development plan in order to
deliver excellent value to our shareholders.

Together with all my fellow directors, | sincerely thank all of
our staff for their loyalty, commitment and hard work, and
our customers, suppliers and shareholders for their continuing

support.

By Order of the Board

LIANG Jin You
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 July 2003
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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OPERATION
Vertical Integration in Manufacturing

The Group continues to follow the long-term strategy of
vertical integration in its manufacturing processes. Cost
effective vertical integration has proven its merits of flexibly
allocating and committing resources among our various
production bases, assuring production quality, shortening
production lead-time, maintaining cost controls and achieving
on-time delivery. These benefits have underpinned the success
of the Group in the past and will continue to form the
foundation for future growth.

Quality Control

The Management continues to place strong emphasis on
product quality and reliability. In addition to setting adequate
incoming and end-of-line quality controls, quality audit and
endurance tests are performed on all incoming base materials,
components, work in progress and finished goods and
throughout the whole production process.

Design, Research and Development

Qur products are customer-oriented. Research and
development are mostly performed in-house to reduce product
development time. During the year under review, over 120
models of clocks, over 20 models of lighting products and
over 25 models of gifts and premium products have been
developed and launched to the market under our private labels
or our owned brand names with marked success.
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(Cont’d)

As part of our aggressive expansion strategy, the Group
continues to strengthen our sales and marketing teams in
the US, the United Kingdom (the “UK”) and Germany to
develop new market segments. Each overseas office is led
by high calibre and experienced sale and marketing
executives. Their inputs on products, markets and customers
allow the Group to keep abreast of useful information on
current market and product trends. The intact knowledge on
customer demands will enable us to serve them well to their
complete satisfaction. The Group is greatly capitalized on
this dynamic marketing and distribution network with an
ongoing direct business contact with our customers.

The Group continues its strategy of direct sales which has
greatly shortened the delivery time of our products to further
consolidate our market position in the US, Europe and the
PRC.

This is so far the most important product line of the Group. It
consists of desk clocks, travel alarm clocks, wall clocks and
bell alarm clocks.

During the year under review, the turnover of analogue clocks
decreased moderately against keen price competition and
the worldwide deteriorating market condition. The
Management will strengthen the product designs and
functionalities in order to improve its sales volume.
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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PRODUCTS (Cont’d)

The turnover of LCD products was HK$8,488,000,
representing a remarkable increase of about 4 times over the
last year. The Management will strive to deploy more
resources on product innovation, to broaden the product
range and to improve its productivity by lowering production
cost.

With growing concerns over environmental protection and
quality consciousness, the Management will continue to
improve lighting models of high efficiency and longer lifetime,
as well as develop more varieties of energy saving lighting

apparatus.

Accumulated during years of manufacturing experiences, the
Company has developed a standardized quality assurance
system in order to meet the relevant safety requirements in
overseas and the PRC markets. For example, our lighting
products quality is highly recognised by complying with the
mandatory requirement of recognised TUV Tests.

The Group will continue to diversify into high margin products
in order to stimulate demand and improve sales performance.
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ARTFIELD GROUP LIMITED

Management Discussion & Analysis
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SUBSIDIARIES

AlIS is our major subsidiary where most of our clock
manufacturing operations are located. The Group’s senior
staff located in AIS impose stringent supervision on all aspects
of its operation ranging from workmanship, material control,
cost control, inventory control to product quality to ensure
that our products have a strong competitive edge over other
industry players in terms of both profitability and return on
capital expenditure.

An effective sourcing and purchasing strategy has been
adopted in order to obtain favourable material prices.

Since the acquisition of the business of a previously well-
known UK-based clock company, Kundo Staiger UK Limited
(“KS”), by the Group in 2001, the strong and extensive
customers network of KS has maintained a positive
contribution to the Group.

FIM, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group in the UK,
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$23,571,000 (2002:
HK$18,147,000). FIM will continue to put more sales and
marketing efforts to diversify its markets covering other
countries in Europe such as Ireland and the Netherlands. In
the year ahead, FIM will assist to launch and promote our
branded products and lighting products in the UK market
and the Management is confident that FIM will broaden future
developments.
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Management Discussion & Analysis
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SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Wehrle Uhrenfabrik GmbH (“Wehrle”)

Our wholly-owned subsidiary in Germany, Wehrle continues
to focus on turning from losses to profits by developing new
widening customers base,

products, restructuring

management and reducing costs.

The Group will further streamline operation activities and
restructure its management in Wehrle in order to strengthen
it as one of our trading arms in developing the Germany
market. It is expected that its performance will be improved
in the forthcoming years.

Ultra Good Electroplating Limited (“Ultra Good”)

Ultra Good’s business is to apply electroplating layers onto
plastic and metal surface. The electroplating layers include
copper, nickel, chrome and gold. It serves the Group as well

as external customers.

Ultra Good’s production technology and workmanship are
the key in determining the product quality.

Ultra Good recorded a modest decrease in turnover during
the year. Against the keen competition, the Management
expects to manufacture our own electroplating products so
as to squeeze the weaker rivalries out of competition.
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ARTFIELD GROUP LIMITED

Management Discussion & Analysis
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SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)
Right Time Group, Inc. (“Right Time”)

As part of our market expansion strategy, Right Time has
been set up in the US for about 4 years. The main purpose
of Right Time is to serve as a key communication bridge
between Hong Kong head office and customers in the North
America. During the year under review, Right Time recorded
a decrease in turnover when facing the unfavorable market
environment in the US.

However, the Group believes that market potential in the US
is still promising in the near future. Apart from selling the
low-ranked “Klik” clocks, it is proposed to introduce our high-
ranked brand “Wehrle” to diversify the existing market
segment and capture more market shares in the US. The
Management will remain alert to the anticipation of a
worldwide economic recovery and adopt strategies that
provide prompt response to market changes.

MtBAS (&)
Right Time Group, Inc. ([ Right Time )

1E /RIS TR ER & — 28 10 - Right Time2 7
E BB I XU F < Right Timex Z{EREF
BARREEINEFPNEEBBABR KD
BFE &R XBE TS T AR Right Timez
HERRTES T &

Al AEEHRKZBETGNENDRES
Eofr T HEERE R [Kik] FFEEMIN HiE
& MEREAKE B 2 = 1EmiE [ Wehrle] JATE
RABEMBAFDEXETEEZNHES
KH R -EREARYNIEEBHRIREH
B BRIEENRRLEMSNEEED
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BB 5 R R A

SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)
Precision Group Limited (“Precision”)

Precision is responsible for our lighting product segment. It
mainly engages in the manufacturing of energy saving lamps,
and its related parts and components. Its factory is located
in Shenzhen, the PRC.

In line with the worldwide consciousness of saving energy
and the trend to use environmental friendly products, the
Group will continue to improve and upgrade the functions of
the lighting products and apply tighter control over cost and
labour in order to increase Precision’s profitability.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2003, the Group had 2,277 (2002: 1,847)
employees spreading among Hong Kong, the PRC, the US,
the UK and Germany. Industrial relationship has been well

maintained.

The Group has adopted an extensive training policy for its
employees. It has also sponsored senior executives for higher
education programs.

The Group has adopted a share option scheme whereby
certain employees of the Group may be granted options to
acquire shares of the Company.

Fft /8 2 B

(&)

Precision Group Limited ([ Precision])
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ARTFIELD GROUP LIMITED

Management Discussion & Analysis
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LIQUIDITY & FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 20083, the Group had total outstanding debts
and finance lease obligations of HK$53,889,000 (2002:
HK$37,482,000), of which HK$42,118,000 (2002:
HK$34,503,000) was secured bank loans, HK$9,058,000
(2002: HK$2,335,000) was secured overdrafts, HK$832,000
(2002: Nil) was unsecured other loans and HK$1,881,000
(2002: HK$644,000) was obligations under finance leases.
The amount repayable within one year accounted for 68.7%
(2002: 75.6%) of the total borrowings as at 31 March 2003.
The maturity profile of the Group’s total borrowings as at 31
March 2003 is analysed as follows:

Within one year —¢ Al

In the second year —FR

In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZFEERF (B
Beyond five years A aF

Total FEE

Our gearing ratio was at a healthy level of 8.4% (2002: 4.6%).
The computation is based on long-term borrowings of the
Group divided by shareholders fund.

The Group’s sound financial position will provide us with good
financial capacity to either expand our existing operation or
to diversify into other strategic growth business.
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The Group’s investment properties with a value of
HK$7,700,000 (2002: HK$8,000,000), bank deposits of
HK$2,907,000 (2002: HK$2,540,000) and certain of the
Group’s leasehold land and buildings, and plant and
machinery were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.

The Group mainly earns revenue and incurs costs in US dollars
and Hong Kong dollars. Foreign exchange exposure of the
Group is minimal so long as the HKSAR Government’s policy
to link Hong Kong dollars to US dollars remains in effect.

Since the Group’s principal manufacturing operations are in
the PRC and most of the operating expenses are denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”), the Management is aware of possible
exchange rate exposure. As a hedging strategy, the
Management emphasizes on using RMB borrowings to finance
the Group’s PRC operation and capital expenditure.

The Group generally finances its operation with generated
resources and banking and credit facilities provided by banks
in Hong Kong and the PRC. All borrowings are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and RMB. Borrowing
methods used by the Group mainly include trust receipt loans,
overdrafts facilities and bank loans. The interest rates of most
of these borrowings are fixed with reference to the Hong
Kong Dollar Prime Rate or foreign currency’s Trade Finance
Rates.
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On 16 August 2002, Artfield Company Limited (“ACL”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a Sale and Purchase Agreement with an
independent third party (the “Vendor”) for the acquisition of
all the issued shares of Lens Trading Inc. (“Lens”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, pursuant to which
ACL agreed to purchase from the Vendor the entire interests
in Lens for an aggregate consideration of HK$20,000,000.
The principal business activity of Lens is the provision of
logistics and distribution business of trading commodities
between Hong Kong and the PRC.

Through this acquisition, the Management believes that it will
enhance the stability of earning trading income to the
Company and minimize the operational risks in the trading of
metal commodity business. Along with the long-term vertical
integration strategy adopted by the Group, it will also enhance
the management of trading and distribution business as well
as to minimize the overall operation costs thus to improve
profit margin in the trading business. The Board believes that
this transaction represents a promising opportunity for the
Company to broaden its earning base and expand its trading
business into an area, which in certain aspects, complements
its existing operations in the future. It is expected that the
trading and distribution business will be able to contribute to

the Group in the long run.

As at 31 March 2003, the Group did not have material
contingent liabilities (2002: HK$517,000).

LIANG Jin You
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 July 2003
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Mr. LIANG Jin You, aged 46, the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company, is responsible for the Group’s overall
strategic planning and policy making. He has more than 20
years of experience in trading, industrial management and in
the real estate business in Hong Kong and the PRC. He
joined the Group in 1998. He is a brother of Mr. LEUNG Kin
Yau and the husband of Ms. LI Kwo Yuk.

Ms. LI Kwo Yuk, aged 41, the Deputy Chairman of the
Company, is responsible for overseeing the purchasing
department. Ms. LI joined the Group on 1 January 2000 and
has more than 17 years of experience in accounting, trading
and administration. She is the wife of Mr. LIANG Jin You.

Mr. LEUNG Kin Yau, aged 39, is responsible for the Group’s
clock marketing function and trading business. He has more
than 14 years of experience in the trading of industrial
materials and consumer products between Hong Kong and
the PRC. Since 7 January 2002, he was appointed as the
Marketing President of the Group to oversee the corporate
marketing strategies and manage our local and overseas
marketing teams. He joined the Group in 1998 and he is a
brother of Mr. LIANG Jin You.

Mr. OU Jian Sheng, aged 40, is the General Manager of
Artfield Industries (Shenzhen) Ltd. (“AlS”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company in the PRC. He is responsible for
the overall management of AIS. He has a bachelor’s degree
in mechanical design and is a qualified mechanical engineer.
He was employed in B/ E 2 & 28 5T T (Guangzhou
Electrical Appliance Science Research Centre) of #1 Bl # #
T #36 (the Mechanical Engineering Industrial Department)
and was the factory director of &R # I E @ F & K
(Guangdong Foshan Electrical Fan General Factory). He joined
the Group in August 1999.

Mr. DENG Ju Neng, aged 48, the Managing Director of
Ultra Good Electroplating Surface Finishing (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company in the PRC, is responsible
for the subsidiary’s day-to-day operations and overall
manufacturing activities. He has more than 20 years of
experience in trade, corporate management and real estate
development. He joined the Group in 1998.
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Mr. LO Wah Wai, aged 40, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since 15 May 2001. He
holds a bachelor’s degree in business administration from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong and is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. Prior to
joining the Group in 1998, he worked and held senior positions
in both an international accounting firm and an investment
bank where he accumulated extensive experience in statutory
accounting, corporate finance and strategic investment. He
is currently the Chairman and an executive director of B M
Intelligence International Limited, a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. It is principally engaged in the provision of
business, accounting and corporate development advisory
services to companies in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Mr. LO Ming Chi, Charles, aged 53, JP, is a member of
the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and
the Securities Institute of Australia. He is a director of Tak
Sing Alliance Holdings Limited, Dah Hwa International
(Holdings) Limited, Xin Corporation Limited and New Century
Group Hong Kong Limited, all of which are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He has more than
24 years of experience in financial and investment services in
Australia, Hong Kong and other Asian countries. He was
appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in 1998.

Mr. CHEUNG Doi Shu, aged 41, is a qualified solicitor in
the Australian Capital Territory, Hong Kong, Singapore and
England and Wales. He holds a bachelor’s and a master’s
degree in law from the University of London, the United
Kingdom. He is the senior partner of D.S. Cheung & Co.,
whose practice includes securities, corporate finance, China
investments and international banking and finance. He is a
director of Denway Motors Limited, TPV Holdings Limited
and GZI Transport Limited, all of which are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He was appointed
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in 1998.
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Mr. CHAN Tak Wing, aged 44, the Group Financial Controller
and Company Secretary, is responsible for the Group’s
financial, accounting and company secretarial functions. He
is an associate of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, and the Association of Cost and Executive
Accountants, and is a fellow of the Association of Taxation
and Management Accountants in Australia. He joined the
Group on 14 August 1995 and has more than 20 years of

experience in accounting and finance.

Ms. TSE Fung Sang, aged 62, an Executive Director of
Ultra Good Electroplating Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company in Hong Kong, is responsible for the overall
management and operations of this subsidiary. She joined
the Group on 9 May 1991 and has more than 37 years of
experience in the electroplating business.

Mr. Paul TURNAGE, aged 52, joined the Group on 18 May
2001, is the Managing Director of Ferdinand International
(Marketing) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company in the United Kingdom. He is responsible for the
Group’s overall business and operations in the United
Kingdom. Since 1987, he was the Managing Director of Kundo
Staiger UK Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Kundo
Staiger GmbH, which was one of Europe’s largest clock
producers. He has been in the clock industry for 24 years
and has extensive knowledge of the European and Far Eastern
clock industry.

Mr. Werner JASER, aged 63, is the Sales Manager of Wehrle
Uhrenfabrik GmbH, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company in Germany. He is responsible for the Group’s
overall business in major countries of Europe and Middle
East. Mr. JASER received substantial training in marketing
and sales and has held senior positions in certain wrist
watches and clocks companies in the United Kingdom,
France, Austria and Switzerland. Before joining the Group in
April 2001, he ran his own clock business for more than 10
years. He has more than 32 years of experience in the clock
industry.
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(Cont’d)

Mr. Ron KRISHER, aged 46, is the President of Right Time
Group Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in the
United States. Mr. KRISHER graduated from the Rochester
Institute of Technology (New York) and holds a degree in
Business Administration with major in Marketing. He is
responsible for the Group’s overall business in the Americas.
Prior to joining the Group, he was the Director of Sales of
General Time Corporation, which was the largest clock
manufacturer and reseller in the United States. Before that,
he also held succeeding more responsible positions with both
Milton Bradley Company and Hunt Corporation. He joined
the Group in September 2001 and has over 25 years of
experience in sales and marketing of consumer products via
different distribution channels.

Mr. LEE Wai Lung, aged 27, the Chief Accountant, is
responsible for the Group’s accounting function. Mr. LEE is a
graduate of Hong Kong Baptist University in Accountancy.
He is presently a member of Hong Kong Society of
Accountants and the Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants. He has over 5 years of experience in auditing,
finance and accounting. He joined the Group in August 2001.

Mr. LI Hung Tak, aged 43, is the Plant Superintendent of
the Group’s factory at Shenzhen. He joined the Group in
August 1990 and has more than 17 years of experience in

production planning and management.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 20083.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
consisted of the manufacture and marketing of clocks and
lighting products, the trading of metals and the provision of
electroplating services. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s activities during the year.

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2003 and
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 37 to
98.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year.

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities,
and minority interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements is
set out on pages 99 to 100 of the annual report. This summary
does not form part of the audited financial statements.

Details of movements in the fixed assets and investment
properties of the Group during the year are set out in note
12 to the financial statements.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year, together with the reasons therefor, and details of
the Company’s warrants and share options are set out in
notes 25 and 26 to the financial statements.
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There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-
laws of the Company or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

During the year, the Company repurchased certain of its
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the summary
details of which are as follows:

REARR 2 AAARREREEG L&
FHRBEBERZRATE ABEARFMBAR
HIR A BCRIZ R PI B 1T A 4n -

RARER KRBEEEBAEXZAAERA
A (T2 prl) BBEIE T HREEER0.107T
ZEBBED FEHEMT:

Price per share

Number of ShEE Total

Month of repurchase BE RS A5 shares repurchased Highest Lowest price paid
BEROGHE BEafE RIEE #HAALER

HK$ HK$ HK$000

BT BT BT T

October 2002 —EE-F+A 962,000 0.63 0.59 592
February 2003 —TE=F_A 800,000 0.63 0.57 485
1,762,000 1,077

The repurchased shares were cancelled during the year and
the issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the
par value thereof. The premium paid on the repurchase of
the shares of HK$901,000 has been debited to the share
premium account.

The repurchase of the Company’s shares during the year
was effected by the directors, pursuant to the mandate from
shareholders, with a view to benefiting shareholders as a
whole by enhancing the net asset value per share and
earnings per share of the Group.
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(Cont’d)

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, in May 2003, the
Company repurchased 506,000 of its ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each on the Stock Exchange at prices ranging from
HK$0.56 to HK$0.57 per share. The total purchase
consideration,
HK$291,000.

including its related expenses, was

Further details of these transactions are set out in note 25 to
the financial statements. Save as disclosed above, neither
the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the

year.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of
the Group during the year are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements.

At 31 March 2003, the Company had no retained profits
available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the Company’s
contributed surplus of HK$128,013,000 may be distributed
under certain circumstances. In addition, the Company’s share
premium account with a balance of HK$25,361,000 may be

distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for 55% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 35%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 60% of the total purchases for the year and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted
10 42%.
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(Cont’d)

As far as the directors are aware, one of the shareholders,
who own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital, had 50% beneficial interest in the Group’s largest

customer.

Save as disclosed above, as far as the directors are aware,
neither the directors, their associates, nor any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and

suppliers.

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Mr. LIANG Jin You
Ms. LI Kwo Yuk
Mr. LEUNG Kin Yau
Mr. OU Jian Sheng
Mr. DENG Ju Neng

Mr. LO Wah Wai

Mr. LO Ming Chi, Charles
Mr. CHEUNG Doi Shu

In accordance with articles 86(2) and 87 of the Company’s
bye-laws, Mr. OU Jian Sheng and Mr. CHEUNG Doi Shu will
retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 23 to

26 of the annual report.
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During the year ended 31 March 2003, an executive director HE-ZZE=F=A=+—HILFERN %
provided management services to the Group under the fTEZEERBINTZANRAEEREEIER

following contracts: %

Director Terms of service Expiry date
ES AR %5 54 #1F B #
Ms. LI Kwo Yuk 2 years 30 April 2002
FXEmT —F —EE-_FWA=+H

The above service contract which expired during the year A EBEIHZRES LR AFE AL &£ E

was not renewed. #ye

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual AR AN EEBFE RS RIT s RRBAFERES
general meeting has a service contract with the Company  FEEET 2B R TA TR —FRNH
which is not determinable by the Company within one year ZARRAFEMEKIF CEERERIN 2B 4o
without payment other than statutory compensation.

No director had a significant beneficial interest, either direct BEEEA R A HETAHEBRRRANEE
or indirect, in any contract of significance to the business of RIME WMES LT TEAEBERA
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries BE 2 BEAA K TEFE B (LA & FE B3
was a party at any time during the year. ZEEBHEm-



At 31 March 2003, the interests of the directors and their
associates in the share capital of the Company or its
associated corporations, as required to be recorded in the
Register of Directors’ Interests maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 29 of the Securities (Disclosure of

Interests) Ordinance (the “SDI Ordinance”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of the Company

XA EERRG

Director

=

Mr. LIANG Jin You*

Note:

119,184,300 shares are owned by Golden Glory Group
Limited (“GG”). GG is a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands. The entire issued share capital of GG is
beneficially owned by General Line International (Holdings)
Limited, which is in turn 100% beneficially owned by Mr.
LIANG Jin You.

The interests of the directors in the share options of the
Company are separately disclosed in the note 26 to the
financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief
executives or their associates had any personal, family,
corporate or other interests in the equity or debt securities of
the Company or any of its associated corporations, as defined
in the SDI Ordinance.

%
[
e
A

EE=F=A=+—HB REEHF (QAF
feas) 1R 0) ([ R IRD]) L20FREF
RZzBLREMABR SEFHEELARAR
HBB AR ZRAERNAT:

L

Number of issued ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each in the Company
BREEEEIOTZ
AATEHTEERKRBEE

Corporate interests

AT LS
119,184,300

Bt at
g 119,184,300/ f% {5 F Golden Glory Group

Limited ([GG) #E & - GGA I R & 5T L &F
SEMKZ 2 BRAF GGz 2 HE T
BABERERE (FR) BRARNERE
B HARARERELERHER -

BEERARNRRZBRIEE D FISERIH
PR 75 ¥R 5 B 526 o

BREXHEEIN SEZ TTHRREERREZ
HEATRARB ZRARERMBERF
(EE R RRERKN) 2 RAHES HE
BAEEAEA Rk ARREM 2 Es-



Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ interests in
shares and share options” above and in the share option
scheme disclosures in note 26 to the financial statements, at
no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any director or their respective spouse
or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

Due to the adoption of Hong Kong Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 34 “Employee benefits” during the year,
detailed disclosures relating to the Company’s share option
scheme have been moved to note 26 to the financial
statements.

At 31 March 2003, no person other than Mr. LIANG Jin You,
as set out in the section “Directors’ interests in shares and
share options” above, had registered an interest in 10% or
more of the issued share capital of the Company in the register
of interests that is required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 16(1) of the SDI Ordinance.

All of the recommendations and guidelines of the Code of
Best Practice issued by the Stock Exchange (the “Code”)
have been complied with by the Company throughout the
accounting period covered by the annual report, except that
independent non-executive directors are not appointed for
specific terms as required by paragraph 7 of the Code as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. According to the bye-
laws of the Company, one-third of the directors of the
Company will retire by rotation every year and their
appointments will be reviewed when they are due for re-
election which, in the opinion of the directors, meets the
same objective.
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Details of the significant post balance sheet event of the
Group are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

The Company has set up an Audit Committee (the
“Committee”). The Committee meets regularly with senior
management to review the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and to discuss auditing, internal control
and financial reporting matters. The members of the
Committee are Mr. LO Ming Chi, Charles and Mr. CHEUNG
Doi Shu, both of whom are the independent non-executive

directors of the Company.

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

LIANG Jin You
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 July 2003
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Ell ERNST & YOUNG
Z R & 3 & F B o

To the members
Artfield Group Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 37 to 98
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation
of financial statements which give a true and fair view. In
preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view,
it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are
selected and applied consistently. It is our responsibility to
form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those
statements and to report our opinion to you.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants, except that the scope of our work was limited
as explained below.

An audit includes an examination, on a test basis, of evidence
relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant
estimates and judgements made by the directors in the
preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s and
the Group’s circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement. However, the evidence
available to us was limited as explained below.
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As further detailed in notes 14 and 28(b) to the financial
statements, the Group acquired a subsidiary (the “Acquisition”)
for a consideration of HK$20 million during the year. The
evidence available to us in connection with the acquisition of
this company was limited. Notwithstanding that we understand
the acquired subsidiary has been in the metals distribution
business for some three years, no proper books and records
in connection with the subsidiary company’s activities prior
to the Acquisition, other than in respect of the fixed assets
and other receivable set out in note 28(b) to the financial
statements, were available for our audit. Accordingly, we were
unable to obtain sufficient evidence to assess or confirm the
accounting for the Acquisition, to ascertain the reasonableness
of the amounts paid for the Acquisition or otherwise determine
how the payments of HK$20 million should be reflected in
the underlying transaction. As a result of this scope limitation,
we were not able to perform the procedures we considered
necessary to assess the transaction as a whole and,
accordingly, the carrying value of the goodwill arising from
the acquisition at 31 March 2003. Any adjustment to either
the goodwill and/or the net assets acquired arising from the
acquisition of the subsidiary would have a consequential
impact on the Group’s net assets as at 31 March 2003 and
its profit for the year then ended.

In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy
of the presentation of information in the financial statements.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

Except for any adjustments or disclosures that might have
been found to be necessary had we been able to satisfy
ourselves regarding the matter discussed in the preceding
paragraph, in our opinion the financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2003 and of the profit and cash
flows of the Group for the year then ended and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

In respect alone of the limitation on our work relating to the
acquisition of the subsidiary,

— we have not obtained all the information and explanations
that we considered necessary for the purpose of our
audit; and

— we were unable to determine whether proper books of
account had been kept.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 July 2003
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TURNOVER

Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income
Administrative expenses

Selling and distribution costs
Other operating expenses

PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Finance costs

Share of loss of a
jointly-controlled entity

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

Tax

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE
MINORITY INTERESTS

Minority interests

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM
ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

EARNINGS/(LOSS)
PER SHARE
Basic

Diluted

EF

H Al g a8
THHAX
HE R HAAR
H A &2 X

RERR,
(B1R)

HEZESEEEMN
BB

BRBLAER ()

BiIA

At D BRRE A
BRSO (BE)

DB R &

BRERELEE
BRSO (B8 FE

BREF (HE)

K

Notes
Kt &t

10

11

2002
—EE-F
HK$’000
BT T

272,556

(214,513)

58,043

2,221
(48,355)
(11,769)

(1,770)

(1,630)

(1,961)

(485)

(4,076)

1,915

(2,161)

(645)

(2,806)

HK(1.16) centsfll

N/AT i




NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Fixed assets

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Interest in a jointly-controlled
entity

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Accounts and bills receivable

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Pledged bank deposits

Cash and bank balances

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Tax payable

Accrued liabilities and other
payables

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Finance lease payables

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

ERBDEE
EE & &
BVEE
o

KREHEEE D

RBEE
)

& B R e B W R %
BNFIE ReREM

& W2 B 3R
BEHEARITER
Re MRITET

REBAE
JE& 5 R 3K
& A~ 752 3K
EETRENREM
& 51 BR 3K
RITREMEER

F& 1 81 75 1 49

RBEEFE

REERRDAEE

Notes

et

12
13
14

16

17
18

23
19

20

21, 23
22

2002
—FE-F

HK$°000
BT

112,717
162

527

113,406

74,596
53,145

8,434
2,540
9,729

148,444

8,887
105

9,933

27,830
489

47,244

101,200

214,606



TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings
Finance lease payables

MINORITY INTERESTS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued capital
Reserves

LIANG Jin You
RER
Director

EF

RMEERRBAEMR

FRBEE

RITREMEE

F& 5 Bt 5 1 49

LBBRRES

BEXRK#E
BEBETRA
ff 18

Notes

et

21, 23
22

25
27

LI Kwo Yuk
ZRE
Director

EF

2002
—FE-F
HK$’000
BT T

214,606

9,008
155

9,163

6,179

199,264

24,281
174,983

199,264




Consolidated Summary Statement of Changes
b A RES B R

in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2008 #Z-—ZZ=F=-F=+—HILFE
2003 2002
—BE=F —ET_F
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt e BT BT T
Total equity at 1 April RIEA—RBzlER 199,264 202,160
Exchange differences on BMEBINKE AR
translation of the financial 2R E Fﬁ% &g
statements of overseas ZEHRERE
subsidiaries 27 1,202 (90)
Net gains/(losses) not BmER RER
recognised in the profit and Wz (B18) FE
loss account 1,202 (90)
Shares repurchased and 1% 1 B |l % 5% 88
cancelled 25 (1,077) -
Exchange fluctuation reserve i & — ) FE R 4
released on disposal of a EREMEEZ
jointly-controlled entity ERR B 27 585 =
Net profit/(loss) for the year ANEEREEMLEF
attributable to shareholders (B518) %@ 27 1,722 (2,806)
Total equity at 31 March R=A=+t—B2#EER 201,696 199,264

ARTFIELD GROUP LIMITED 4@ ANNUAL REPORT 2003



CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Share of loss of a
jointly-controlled entity
Interest income
Dividend income
Depreciation
Amortisation of goodwill
Amortisation of patents and
trademarks
Deficit on revaluation of
fixed assets
Provision for bad and
doubtful debts
Provision for impairment in
value of fixed assets
Loss on disposal of a
jointly-controlled entity
Gain on disposal of

investments held for disposal

Loss/(gain) on disposal of
fixed assets

Operating profit before working

capital changes
Increase in inventories
Increase in accounts and

bills receivable, prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

Increase in accounts payable,
accrued liabilities and
other payables

Decrease in an amount due to
a jointly-controlled entity

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations
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HFEEHIE

FE& 16 5 18

M EWA

B B A

e

7 B 5
B4 Ko AR B R

EHEEAEZ B
RIEE R
B A R A

& SR 42
ERCZEE
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Notes
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2002
—EE_F
HK$’000
BET T
(Restated)
Ed)

(4,076)
1,961
485

(221)

(106)
10,015
99
600

71

1,099

9,189
(6,138)

(7,403)

778

(1,092)

(4,666)



Cash generated from/(used in)
operations

Interest received

Interest paid

Interest element on finance
lease rental payments

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Overseas taxes paid

Overseas taxes refunded

Dividends received from
investments held for disposal

Dividends paid to minority
shareholders of a subsidiary

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of fixed assets

Proceeds from disposal of
fixed assets

Additions to patents and
trademarks

Acquisition of a subsidiary/
business

Proceeds from disposal of a
jointly-controlled entity

Proceeds from disposal of
investments held for disposal

Expenditure incurred for
disposal of investments
held for disposal

Decrease/(increase) in pledged
bank deposits

Net cash outflow from investing
activities

Notes

et

REREBRE,/ (PR
B

EHBAE

ERNHME
MBHEOZHE N

EFBFEMNEH
E#UEINIA
BREZBINGIA
BEURFELREZRE
Z BB
ENHBEARZ
PR ZRE

REXB2HESRN/
O ) F88

REXBZHERE

BEETEEE 12
HEBEEEZ K E

E R R R 2 G
13
WHEM BN R, T
28(b)
PEHXREHERZ
Wz
HERIELECRE
el &
HERELEZKRE
ZF

BEERERZED
(B 0n)

KREEB 2 BEM
g

2002
—EET_F
HK$’000
BB F T
(Restated)
)

(4,666)
221
(1,896)

(65)
(620)
(411)

152

106

(203)

(7,382)

(21,891)

289

3,536

(47)

2,860

(15,867)




CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repurchase of shares

New bank loans

New other loans

Inception of finance leases

Repayment of bank loans

Repayment of other loans

Capital element of finance lease
rental payments

Increase in trust receipt loans

Net cash inflow from financing

activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS AT END OF

YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Bank overdrafts

MEXBZRERE

B An g =

¥IBRITE R
HMIEEMBER
B WA
BEBITER
EEEMER

MBHENZERIRN

1= FE IR & 3R 2 1B A

MEXBHZ

BEeRmAZRRE

ReRkREEEZ

D FE

FzHekREEE

FRZAERAETEE

ReRkREEEZ

BEDM

RehRITHER

RITEX

Notes

et

25

21

2002
—FE_F
HK$'000
BT T
(Restated)
E 7

13,471

(4,990)

(672)
4,342

12,151

(11,098)

18,492

7,394

9,729
(2,335)

7,394




NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments and other
receivables

Cash and bank balances

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accrued liabilities and
other payables

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Issued capital
Reserves

LIANG Jin You
RER
Director

EF

ERBDEE
MEBARZ R

REBEE
B FRIE R H At
JFE A2 Bl K
BehiBRTTHERF

REBEE
BitREREAM
& 51 BR 3K

RBREERE

BEXR#E
EBHITRA
it 18

Notes

et

15

25
27

LI Kwo Yuk
ZRE
Director

EF

2002
—FE-F
HK$’000
BT T

159,863

154
135

289

847

(558)

159,305

24,281
135,024

159,305




During the year, the Group was involved in the following

principal activities:

— manufacture and marketing of clocks and lighting
products;
— trading of metals; and

—  provision of electroplating services.

The following new and revised Hong Kong Statements
of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”) are effective
for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements:

SSAP 1 (Revised) : “Presentation of financial
statements”

e  SSAP 11 (Revised) : “Foreign currency translation”

e SSAP 15 (Revised) : “Cash flow statements”

e SSAP 34 . “Employee benefits”

These SSAPs prescribe new accounting measurement
and disclosure practices. The major effects on the
Group’s accounting policies and on the amounts
disclosed in these financial statements of these SSAPs
are summarised as follows:

SSAP 1 prescribes the basis for the presentation of
financial statements and sets out guidelines for their
structure and minimum requirements for the content
thereof. The principal impact of the revision of this SSAP
is that a consolidated summary statement of changes in
equity is now presented on page 40 of the financial
statements in place of the consolidated statement of

recognised gains and losses that was previously required.
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(Cont’d)

SSAP 11 prescribes the basis for the translation of foreign
currency transactions in the financial statements. The
principal impact of the revision of this SSAP on the
consolidated financial statement is that the profit and
loss accounts of overseas subsidiaries and jointly-
controlled entities are now translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year, whereas previously they were translated at the
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
adoption of the revised SSAP 11 has had no material
effect on the financial statements.

SSAP 15 prescribes the format for the cash flow
statement. The principal impact of the revision of this
SSAP is that the consolidated cash flow statement now
presents cash flows under three headings, cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities, rather
than the five headings previously required. In addition,
cash flows from overseas subsidiaries arising during the
year are now translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions, or at an
approximation thereto, whereas previously they were
translated at the exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date, and the definition of cash equivalents for the
purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement has
been revised. Further details of these changes are
included in the accounting policies for “Cash and cash
equivalents” and “Foreign currencies” in note 3 and in
note 28(a) to the financial statements.

SSAP 34 prescribes the recognition and measurement
criteria to apply to employee benefits, together with the
required disclosures in respect thereof. The adoption of
this SSAP has resulted in no material change to the
previously adopted accounting treatments for employee
benefits. Disclosures are now required in respect of the
Company’s share option scheme, as detailed in note 26
to the financial statements. These share option scheme
disclosures are similar to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) disclosures
previously included in the Report of the Directors, which
are now included in the notes to the financial statements
as a consequence of the SSAP.
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These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for the periodic remeasurement of investment properties

and certain fixed assets, as further explained below.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 March 2003. The results of subsidiaries
acquired or disposed of during the year are consolidated
from or to their effective dates of acquisition or disposal,
respectively. All significant intercompany transactions and
balances within the Group are eliminated on
consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the results and net assets of the
Company'’s subsidiaries.

A subsidiary is a company whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
profit and loss account to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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(Cont’d)

A joint venture company is a company set up by
contractual arrangement, whereby the Group and other
parties undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
company operates as a separate entity in which the
Group and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture and the basis
on which the assets are to be realised upon its
dissolution. The profits and losses from the joint venture
company’s operations and any distributions of surplus
assets are shared by the venturers, either in proportion
to their respective capital contributions, or in accordance
with the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture company is treated as:

(@) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,

directly or indirectly, over the joint venture company;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not have
unilateral control, but has joint control, directly or

indirectly, over the joint venture company;

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral
or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly,
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture
company’s registered capital and is in a position to
exercise significant influence over the joint venture

company; or

(d) along term investment, if the Group holds, directly
or indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture
company’s registered capital and has neither joint
control of, nor is in a position to exercise significant

influence over, the joint venture company.
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(Cont’d)

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture company which
is subject to joint control, resulting in none of the
participating parties having unilateral control over the

economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included in the
consolidated profit and loss account and consolidated
reserves, respectively. The Group’s interests in jointly-
controlled entities are stated in the consolidated balance
sheet at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity

method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
jointly-controlled entities represents the excess of the
cost of the acquisition over the Group’s share of the fair
values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired
as at the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset and amortised
on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of

a period up to a maximum of 20 years.

In prior years, goodwill arising on acquisitions was
eliminated against consolidated reserves in the year of
acquisition. The Group applied the transitional provision
of SSAP 30 that permited such goodwill to remain
eliminated against consolidated reserves. Goodwill on
subsequent acquisitions is treated according to the SSAP

30 goodwill accounting policy above.
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(Cont’d)

(Cont’d)
On disposal of subsidiaries or jointly-controlled entities,
the gain or loss on disposal is calculated by reference to
the net assets at the date of disposal, including the
attributable amount of goodwill which remains
unamortised and any relevant reserves, as appropriate.
Any attributable goodwill previously eliminated against
consolidated reserves at the time of acquisition is written
back and included in the calculation of the gain or loss
on disposal.

The carrying amount of goodwill, including goodwill
remaining eliminated against consolidated reserves, is
reviewed annually and written down for impairment when
it is considered necessary. A previously recognised
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed unless the
impairment loss was caused by a specific external event
of an exceptional nature that was not expected to recur,
and subsequent external events have occurred which
have reversed the effect of that event.

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of
subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities represents the
excess of the Group’s share of the fair values of the
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired as at the date
of acquisition, over the cost of the acquisition.

To the extent that negative goodwill relates to
expectations of future losses and expenses that are
identified in the acquisition plan and that can be
measured reliably, but which do not represent identifiable
liabilities as at the date of acquisition, that portion of
negative goodwill is recognised as income in the
consolidated profit and loss account when the future

losses and expenses are recognised.

(#4&)

(%)
REEMBEARSARZES ERE G
EMBNANAERE2EZERNLER
MEERE (BRAKHEFENBERAE
bR st B - U ERA FEERHE
ZEEGRERFAELE ZEMNHE
B

BEZEEFE BRERGEEREETD
HENmE 8FHELFERLRS
R RERENERE BB FACHE
RZRETSIEL R BRIEZRET
B 0108 1 S 3R 55 1 BT B8 i Uk SN 2R =R A
TEEBRECHE HINKRFHE
ERER/NTERE

B BB B BB A B R R I B8 & &
ZBE®BE JiiE EH&ZE%?.? BAKEK
BRUBMNEERBEZAFEELZKE
A 2 EB R AR D

EREL EaERERKREES
BRCENEBERIL AR MZER
AN EMHE B TREEWEE
BzAHREE 2o 28EHER
BREBERT LR eEKAER
R ERABRA-



(Cont’d)
(Cont’d)
To the extent that negative goodwill does not relate to
identifiable expected future losses and expenses as at
the date of acquisition, negative goodwill is recognised
in the consolidated profit and loss account on a
systematic basis over the remaining average useful life
of the acquired depreciable/amortisable assets. The
amount of any negative goodwill in excess of the fair
values of the acquired non-monetary assets is recognised

as income immediately.

In the case of jointly-controlled entities, any negative
goodwill not yet recognised in the consolidated profit
and loss account is included in the carrying amount
thereof, rather than as a separately identified item on
the consolidated balance sheet.

In prior years, negative goodwill arising on acquisitions
was credited to the capital reserve in the year of
acquisition. The Group applied the transitional provision
of SSAP 30 that permited such negative goodwill to
remain credited to the capital reserve. Negative goodwill
on subsequent acquisitions is treated according to the
SSAP 30 negative goodwill accounting policy above.

On disposal of subsidiaries or jointly-controlled entities,
the gain or loss on disposal is calculated by reference to
the net assets at the date of disposal, including the
attributable amount of negative goodwill which has not
been recognised in the consolidated profit and loss
account and any relevant reserves as appropriate. Any
attributable negative goodwill previously credited to the
capital reserve at the time of acquisition is written back
and included in the calculation of the gain or loss on

disposal.
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(Cont’d)

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in
making financial and operating decisions. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence. Related parties
may be individuals or corporate entities.

An assessment is made at each balance sheet date of
whether there is any indication of impairment of any
asset, or whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss previously recognised for an asset in
prior years may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
calculated as the higher of the asset’s value in use or its
net selling price.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is charged to the profit and loss account
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, when the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of an asset, however
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is credited to the profit
and loss account in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, when the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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(Cont’d)

Fixed assets, other than investment properties and
construction in progress, are stated at cost or valuation
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after fixed assets have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the profit and loss account in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can
be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits expected
to be obtained from the use of the fixed asset, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that
asset.

Changes in the values of fixed assets, other than
investment properties, are dealt with as movements in
the property revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the profit
and loss account. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is
credited to the profit and loss account to the extent of
the deficit previously charged. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the property revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

In accordance with the transitional provisions as set out
in SSAP 17 “Property, plant and equipment”, revaluations
of the leasehold land and buildings of the Group
subsequent to the adoption of the SSAP in 1995 will not
be undertaken on a regular basis.
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(Cont’d)
(Cont’d)
Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each asset over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold land Over the lease terms

Leasehold buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements 15%
Plant and machinery 20%

Furniture, equipment and
motor vehicles 15% to 25%

The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of a fixed

asset recognised in the profit and loss account, is the

difference between the net sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents the costs incurred
in connection with the construction of fixed assets, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs incurred
during the period of construction, installation and testing.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of fixed assets when completed and ready for
use.

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
in respect of which construction work and development
have been completed, and which are intended to be
held on a long term basis for their investment potential,
any rental income being negotiated at arm’s length. Such
properties are not depreciated and are stated at their
open market values on the basis of annual professional
valuations performed at the end of each financial year,
except where the unexpired term of the lease is 20 years
or less, in which case depreciation is provided on the
then carrying amount over the remaining terms of the
lease.
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(Cont’d)
(Cont’d)
Changes in the values of investment properties are dealt
with as movements in the property revaluation reserve.
If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit,
on a portfolio basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to the profit and loss account. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited to the profit and loss
account to the extent of the deficit previously charged.

On disposal of an investment property, the relevant
portion of the property revaluation reserve realised in
respect of previous valuations is released to the profit
and loss account.

Patents and trademarks

Patents and trademarks, which represent the registration
fees of patents and trademarks, are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-

line basis over their useful lives of five years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the profit and loss

account as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
projects are clearly defined; the expenditure is separately
identifiable and can be measured reliably; there is
reasonable certainty that the projects are technically
feasible; and the products have commercial value.
Product development expenditure which does not meet

these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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(Cont’d)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases are included in fixed assets and are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the profit and loss account so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the profit and
loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under the operating leases are charged to the profit and
loss account on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Trading terms with customers are largely on credit,
except for new customers where payment in advance is
normally required. Invoices are normally payable within
30 days of issuance, except for certain well-established
customers, where the terms are extended to 180 days.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly

reviewed by senior management.
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(Cont’d)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on the estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion

and disposal.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Prior to the adoption of the revised SSAP 15 during the
year, as explained in note 2 to the financial statements,
cash equivalents in the consolidated cash flow statement
also included advances from banks repayable within three
months from the date of the advance, in addition to
bank overdrafts. This change in definition has resulted in
a prior year adjustment relating to trust receipt loans,
further details of which are included in note 28(a) to the

financial statements.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and bank
balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which

are not restricted as to use.
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(Cont’d)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on

all significant timing differences to the extent it is probable

that the liability will crystallise in the foreseeable future.

A deferred tax asset is not recognised until its realisation

is assured beyond reasonable doubt.

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a)

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

provision of electroplating services, when the related
services are rendered;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

interest income, on a time proportion basis taking
into account the principal outstanding and the
effective interest rate applicable; and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to

receive payment has been established.
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(Cont’d)

Employment Ordinance long service payments

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the
required number of years of service to the Group in
order to be eligible for long service payments under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in the event of the
termination of their employment. The Group is liable to
make such payments in the event that such a termination
of employment meets the circumstances specified in the
Employment Ordinance.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group
had no significant obligations for long service payments
to its employees pursuant to the requirements under the
Employment Ordinance, Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong, at 31 March 2003 and 2002.

Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the profit and loss account as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.
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(Cont’d)
(Cont’d)

Retirement benefits scheme (Cont’d)

The Company’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China are members of the state-managed retirement
benefits scheme operated by the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) government. The retirement scheme
contributions, which are based on a certain percentage
of the salaries of the PRC subsidiaries’ employees, are
charged to the profit and loss account in the period to
which they relate and represent the amount of
contributions payable by these subsidiaries to this
scheme.

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. The financial impact of share options granted
under the share option scheme is not recorded in the
Company’s or the Group’s balance sheet until such time
as the options are exercised, and no charge is recorded
in the profit and loss account or balance sheet for their
cost. Upon the exercise of share options, the resulting
shares issued are recorded by the Company as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the
excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal
value of the shares is recorded by the Company in the
share premium account. Options which are cancelled
prior to their exercise date, or which lapse, are deleted
from the register of outstanding options.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the
applicable exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are translated at
the applicable exchange rates ruling at that date.
Exchange differences are dealt with in the profit and

loss account.
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(Cont’d)
(Cont’d)
On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas
subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities are translated
into Hong Kong dollars using the net investment method.
The profit and loss accounts of overseas subsidiaries
and jointly-controlled entities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year, and their balance sheets are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date. The resulting translation differences

are included in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the

weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Prior to the adoption of the revised SSAPs 11 and 15
during the year, as explained in note 2 to the financial
statements, the profit and loss accounts of overseas
subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entities and the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries were translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. The adoption of the revised SSAP 11 has
had no material effect on the financial statements, while
the adoption of the revised SSAP 15 has resulted in
changes to the layout of the consolidated cash flow
statement and a prior year adjustment relating to trust
receipt loans, further details of which are included in

note 28(a) to the financial statements.
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Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by
business segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment

reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately, according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide.
Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other business segments. Summary
details of the business segments are as follows:

(@) the clocks and other office related products segment
engages in the manufacture and marketing of clocks
and other office related accessories;

(b) the lighting products segment engages in the
manufacture and marketing of energy saving lighting
products;

(c) the trading segment engages in the trading of
metals; and

(d) the electroplating services segment engages in the

provision of electroplating services.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to

the segments based on the location of the assets.
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

=A=+-8

The following tables present revenue, results and

certain asset, liability and expenditure information

for the Group’s business segments.

Group
£8

Segment revenue:
Sales to external customers

Segment results

Interest and dividend income
Net unallocated expenses

Profit/{loss) from operating
activities

Finance costs

Share of loss of a
jointly-controlled entity

Profit/(loss) before tax
Tax

Profit/(loss) before minority
interests
Minority interests

Net profit/(loss) from ordinary
activities attributable
to shareholders

ARRE:
BETHIER

NERE

HEREEMA
REBINHFE

AREHER
EiEER

AR/ (BR)
B

Kt BRERER
&1/ (BR)
SERRER

RAEMEER
&1/ (BR)
B

4. HEEH (&)
TRFANTAERZEB B2
o EBEURETEE ABERER
&Ko
Clocks and
other office
related products Lighting Electroplating
RERAM products Trading services Consolidated
HAZEBER ReER g5 {1t iy
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
CRERZE CTT-F 99K C9TCF CE9CF CTTCF CRECF CBICE CBECE DR
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
E¥Trn EETr ERTn BETn E¥Tn EKTn EMTn EBTn ERTn BRI
150,792 140,057 9903 10605 94963 108061 13195 13833 268,853 272,556
8,467 4073 621 577 2,781 2,459 1,917 2,515 13,786 9,624
4 37
(8,915)  (11,581)
4912 (1,630)
(2,341)  (1,91)
(48) (485 - - - - - 5 (48) (485
2523 (4,076)
(219) 1,915
2,304 (2,161)
(582) (645)
1,722 (2,806)
—22 =48 03 B ® £ 8 FR
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 4.
(Cont’d)
Group
&5
Clocks and
other office
related products Lighting
RERLH products
HAERBER RHER
2003 2002 2003 2002
Z8%ZF “RT-F B3R CTRCF
HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000
BETT BEFT  BETT BRI
Segment assets AEEE 154718 140337 10915 7,983
Interest in a jointly-controlled ~ AFEHIEEER
entity - 521 - =
Unallocated assets R ENEE
Totel assets EEOE
Segment liabilties AEEE 18579 14426 1,019 750
Unallocated fiabities FuBrAE
Total fabilties BELE
Other segment information: ~~~ E# A EE#:
Capital expenditure BRERR "2 6714 1,222 =
Unallocated capital expendiure &% B EAERR
Depreciation and amortisation 7% i & 7326 6672 388 43
Unallocated depreciation and K& &5 HTER
amortisation B

Unallocated impaiment loss & &2 REER

recognised in the proft PEERZ
and loss acoount REEE
Other non-cash expense AtFRLER 1,126 71 130

Unallocated non-cash expenses #&EAHEELEM

Revaluation reserve released ~ HELHREFM
on disposal of land and EXZMFERRRE
buildings

SEER (&)

(%)
Electroplating
Trading services
g5 EERE
2003 2002 2003 2002
Z8%ZF “3T-F CE%CE CT3Cf
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
E8Tn BETn EETn BETn
64,891 39,056 16,310 17,69
- - 1,425 1,218
3 - 368 523
581 - 1,379 1,503
o - 95 -

Consolidated

2003
£8:5
HK$°000
BT

246,834

47,666

294,500

21,923
64,325

86,248

13,315
261

9,674

1,326

1,351
355

154

4
2002
Z352%
HK8:000
BETT

204,941

521
96,362

261,850

16,454
30,968

56,407

7,281
15,260

8,588

1,626

1,009

n
600
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 4. DEEH &)
The following table presents revenue and certain RTHRERETAEEMR B 2K
asset and expenditure information for the Group’s mATEERBRAER-
geographical segments.
Group
£8
North America Europe Hong Kong Mainland China Others Consolidated
&M B R HE -4 i85
2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002 2003 2002
CESCE CFTCF C9%CH -ET-F CE9CH CBT-F CTBCE CBT0F CE3CE CET-F C3RCE CETCF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
AEFn AMFr BETn ARTn BETn AMTr BETn AETn EETn ARTn BEfn AETr
Seqment revenue: S EME:
Sales to extenal ~ $EF
customers HEE 85050 76739 58334 50863 20366 22461 99,106 118652 5795 6841 268853 272,55
Other segment ~~ EHAEER
information:
Segment assets  HEEE 2416 3268 20779 17,120 80,479 62822 191,126 178,631 - - 294500 261,850
Capital expenditure EAEER 131 = 159 814 438 15159 8900 652 - - 13576 22407
5. TURNOVER 5. EX®#
Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, EEENIEEEEn ERERERE
after allowances for returns and trade discounts, and R cHEE: AREBHEERS 2
income from the provision of electroplating services. A e
—2z =448 0Ob B #® £ 8 FR
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31 March 2003 R-_ZETET=F=H=+—H
6. PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 6. JERAM A (EE)
The Group’s profit/(loss) from operating activities is AEBEERN, (BB EHR G
arrived at after charging/(crediting): A) REIEE :
2003 2002
—ER=F —BECF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
Bt e BET T BT T
Cost of inventories sold EHFEEZRA 200,605 211,176
Cost of services provided IRERT 2 B A 7,578 7,270
Staff costs (excluding directors’ B IRA (EEH &
emoluments, note 8): Broh - B sES)
Wages and salaries TERH® 41,264 42,764
Provident fund contributions BIESHR 567 597
41,831 43,361
Depreciation e 12 10,314 10,015
Amortisation of patents and ERERERE®E
trademarks * 13 105 99
Amortisation of goodwill ** R 2 g 14 581 =
Auditors’ remuneration % E R B & 500 930
Research and development MEREREBR
expenditure 1,667 2,342
Minimum lease payments TH REFZEE
under operating leases for GEROR IR
land and buildings 1,433 1,425
Exchange losses/ ER &R
(gains), net (BF)) F58 (150) 633
Provision for bad and doubtful REBRERH
debts 615 71
Provision for impairment in EE & E R ELERE
value of fixed assets - 1,099
Deficit on revaluation of EHEEEEZ
fixed assets & Al 12 300 600
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEBEEE
fixed assets BB (&BFH) 55 (29)
Provision for/(write back) of GEEE,/ (Q#F)
provision for inventories 337 (3,933)
Loss on disposal of a & R 4
jointly-controlled entity BEREEE 399 =
Gain on disposal of HERELREZ
investments held for disposal & EF - (709)
Dividend income from BIELE2®REZ
investments held for disposal & Bl A - (106)
Gross rental income He WAL= (893) (1,238)
Less: Outgoings LB X H 83 82
Net rental income He WA FE (810) (1,156)
Interest income 2 A (41) (221)
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6. PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(Com‘ d)
The amortisation of patents and trademarks for the year
are included in "Administrative expenses” on the face of
the consolidated profit and loss account.

**  The amortisation of goodwill for the year is included in

“Other operating expenses” on the face of the consolidated
profit and loss account.

7. FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on: FEXZ I
Bank loans, overdrafts and ARAFABHEEZ
other loans wholly repayable RITEF - BIR
within five years HMER
Bank loans repayable beyond ERAFHRBHERE
five years |ITE XK
Finance leases BSR40

I
A

ggRN (BE) &)

Y AFEREEFREBGHEC BRESE
BaRZ [TTERAX]A-

v A FERRBHEEERELRERERZ

[RMACEFEST | Ae
LR
Group
&=
2003 2002
—ELT=F —EE-F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
1,973 1,796
281 100
87 65
2,341 1,961
FE® O/ ® H £ BHE R
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8. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE 8.

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration, disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:

Fees: B :
Independent non-executive BUIERITES
directors
Other emoluments of executive HITES2EMBM S

directors:

Basic salaries, housing benefits, HEA#FH & EE 28
other allowances and
benefits in kind

58 TR & K

Provident fund contributions

The number of directors whose remuneration fell within
the bands set out below is as follows:

Nil - HK$1,000,000 # — 8% 1,000,0007T

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 /& #1,000,0017T —
& #1,5600,0007T

HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 /& #2,000,0017T —
& #2,5600,0007T
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2003
—EE=F
HK$’000
BT T

100

3,391
36

3,427

3,527

2003
Z22=

Number of
directors

ESAH

ESNERAEREHFNZES

REBELETHRNRBERREEI61GZ
BRERE XNTARRAZERZAGF
MEeFRET:

2002
—EE-F
HK$’000
BT T

200

5,333
51

5,384

5,684

TN HECEETABHINWT:

2002
—EE-F
Number of
directors

EFEAH




(Cont’d)
(Cont’d)
There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year
(2002: Nil).

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two (2002: four) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out above. Details of the remuneration of the
remaining three (2002: one) non-director, highest paid
employees, each of which fell within the nil —
HK$1,000,000 band, are as follows:

Basic salaries, housing benefits, E&X#H & E=E 285
other allowances and benefits
in kind

Provident fund contributions B IE S HR

During the year, no share options were granted to the
directors, or the non-director, highest paid employees in
respect of their services provided to the Group (2002:
Nil). Further details of the share option scheme of the
Company are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements.

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors, or the non-director, highest paid
employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2002: Nil).

H i 285 & B Y &

(&)

(&)
EFEAFHECTARENERXRENR
EEAME (ZEZT_F &)

rEEzIEERTHEEEFRRA

—EE-F MR HRES FRARSE
MEFBHINM LR T2 =% (ZFF
ZF:—R)IEFZAFEE ESM
B <& %6 ] f3 £8 — & %5 1,000,0007T ' & #
AT

Group
&

2002
—EE 4

==

HK$000
BETT

525
12

537

RERN LRBEEEHFEZTZRHE
BERBERE (T _F ) -BEE
FHEIFEBE N M IS RS M FE26 o

RER AEBREREFNESRIFE
EZRFEEXXNEMME LRSI
PIMNAKEI G IMAR KR HR/ERK
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Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16% (2002: 16%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year.

At 31 March 2003, four (2002: three) subsidiaries, which
were established in Mainland China, were exempted from
the PRC income tax for two years from their first profit-
making year and were eligible for a 50% relief from PRC
corporate income tax for the following three years under
the Income Tax Law of the PRC. The current tax rates
that would otherwise be applicable to these subsidiaries
range from 15% to 24%.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the applicable rates of tax prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the subsidiaries operated during
the year, based on existing legislation, interpretations

and practices in respect thereof.

Group: £H:
Hong Kong: BHA
Current year provision REE

Overprovision in prior years

Deferred (note 24) BIE (K it24)

Elsewhere: H fth i & -
Current year provision REE
Overprovision/(underprovision) BEFEZBERE
in prior years (BETR)
Rebate relating to prior years WEFE 2B
Tax credit/(charge) for the year NEZFHEBEREBD,  (ZH)

BEFEZBRER

BENGHEBAFEREH 2 FEMR
FHERTRNIATH R 16% (ZTFT —F:
16%) R B

R-ZZEZE=F=F=+—H U@ (=ZF
EoF R ERBRRI2HERR-
BEAPECERSHEZETEEENSE
—FREIMERNAERRET R R
B e =F 2 M EHAIRMY -
GBRIZEWNBRARNEEG 2R K&
B R 15%E24%:T & -

FEE AT 2 MR E M 2 B IR B LA F
ABARRKE T 2 AEERERZ
MERREEMRITERZ BERER
AAEEE-

2002
—ETE—F
HK$’000
BT T

(260)
249
1,771

1,760

(185)

188
152

155

1,915



The net profit from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders for the year ended 31 March 2003 dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company was
HK$328,000 (2002: net loss of HK$811,000).

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based
on the net profit from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders for the year of HK$1,722,000 (2002: net
loss of HK$2,806,000), and the weighted average number
of 242,264,656 (2002: 242,807,500) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the net profit from ordinary activities attributable to
shareholders for the year of HK$1,722,000. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation
is the 242,264,656 ordinary shares in issue during the
year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation;
and the weighted average number of 4,940,776 ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration
on the deemed exercise of all options outstanding during
the year. The exercise price of the warrants outstanding
during the year is higher than the average market price
of the Company’s shares and, accordingly, they have no
dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share.

No diluted loss per share amount was shown for the
year ended 31 March 2002 as the effect of the
Company’s share options outstanding during that year
was anti-dilutive. In addition, the exercise price of the
warrants granted and outstanding during that year, was
higher than the average market price of the Company’s
shares and, accordingly, there was no dilutive effect on
the basic loss per share for the year ended 31 March
2002.

RABIRBERERE 2 WEEHLE
i R B A5 #328,0000T (ZET =
F B8R E B #811,0007T) °

BREARF, (B18) IIREAFER
B AL 48 &R FI F E B 1,722,000
—ET - F 1B EB% 2,806,000
L) REARE BITRMD 2 NE TS E
242,264,656/ (= T & =
242,807,5000%) i &t & o

BRESRF DIBEZFERFEN S
MIFEB A, 722,000t B EEF Eh
FER 2 MEEHHE I BRBEEGRER
BANFERMERZCEED BT
242,264,656 EiR RIBERNFEEA
WARTTE Z BARRELUR B R E M ITAT
1§ 2 N5 84,940,776 3 A% - A F
N2 ERITEZRREETEERAR
ANTEHREAS BLEYERELRR
M mEETEo

HE-_ZZ_F-A=1+—H E®HX
TECERENEBEZE ALS
BHEBREEER I REFEIR
KM@ ARITEZRRES HTEER
RARWMTEAREAS Bt EHEHZE =
TE_F-A=+—BZBRELAEE
WEES &



Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 RS M s

31 March 2003 7

12.

===

FIXED ASSETS

Group
£8

Cost or valuation:
At beginning of year
Additions
Acquisition of a subsidiary
(note 28(b))
Transfers
Disposals
Revaluation
Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2003
Accumulated depreciation:

At beginning of year

Provided during the year

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2003

Net book value:
At 31 March 2003

At 31 March 2002

ARTFIELD GROUP LIMITED

T

=A=+-8

AR GE:
KA

HE
WBHBAT
(Bfzt28()
B

e

i
EARE

(2

12. BEEE
Furniture,
Leasehold equipment
land and Leasehold and motor
Investment buildings improvements Construction Plant and vehicles
properties  MALHE  BHNEZ  inprogress  machinery  Hf R Total
RENZ BF %8 ERIR HHERRE RAE &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BB BB BB BB EETT EETT
8,000 110,623 833 - 47,513 44,038 211,007
- 126 3,995 4,504 2,209 2,739 13,573
= = = = = 3 3
- 2,901 - (4,335) 336 1,098 -
- (2,305) - - (250) (1,439) (3,994)
(300) - - - - - (300)
- (28) - - 887 25 884
7,700 111,317 4,828 169 50,695 46,464 221,173
- 21,681 293 - 39,900 36,416 98,290
- 3,956 503 - 2,713 3,142 10,314
- (1,555) - - (240) (1,353) (3,148)
- 6) - - 827 4 825
- 24,076 796 - 43,200 38,209 106,281
7,700 87,241 4,032 169 7,495 8,255 114,892
8,000 88,942 540 - 7,613 7,622 112,717
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(Cont’d)
An analysis of the cost or valuation of the leasehold land
and buildings of the Group at the balance sheet date is

as follows:

Medium term leasehold land and ZEEZFBHHFHEL ~
buildings in Hong Kong: T REF:
At cost DN
At 1995 professional valuation

Medium term leasehold land and & & i LA S 2 A HA R 49

buildings outside Hong Kong: T REF:
At cost EE2g N
At 1995 professional valuation

Total cost or valuation RSk B 42 1A
The valuation of the medium term leasehold land and
buildings was carried out by Knight, Frank & Kan, an
independent firm of professionally qualified valuers, on
an open market, existing use basis as at 31 January
1995. Had the revalued assets been valued at their cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
the total carrying amount of land and buildings as at 31
March 2003 would be restated at HK$20,604,000 (2002:
HK$22,336,000).

The net book value of assets held under finance leases
included in the total amount of plant and machinery of
the Group as at 31 March 2003 amounted to
HK$1,932,000 (2002: HK$732,000).

B—ANEFEXEME

B-—ANEFEXME

(&)
REER NEBZEN L REFTK
A EEIFTMT:

2002
—EE 4

==

HK$000
BT

18,606
31,809

50,415

29,382
30,826

60,208

110,623

PHEANZ T REFZHERBYLE
EHEMERANETREAATER
BARER-—NWNAREFEF—A=+—H#F
B HEEUKANRBZENE R
BEERE R-_ZTT=F=-A=+—AH2
TR EBEFZFEEY B EK
20,604,0007C (= T T — 4F : # #&
22,336,0007C) °

MR_EE=F=A=1+—HHTBEY
BEZEERBFE (BEASEEW
NS AaEE) BB 1,032,0000T (=&
T — 4 3B #732,0007T) °



(Cont’d)
The investment properties are situated in Hong Kong
and are held under medium term leases.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
March 2003 by K.T. Liu Surveyors Limited, an
independent firm of professionally qualified valuers, at
HK$7,700,000 (2002: HK$8,000,000) on an open market
basis. The investment properties are leased to third
parties under operating leases, further summary details
of which are included in note 30(a) to the financial
statements.

At 31 March 2003, the Group’s investment properties,
and certain of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings
and plant and machinery were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 23).

Group

£8

Cost: B R
At beginning of year NN
Additions &
Exchange realignment ERFHE

Accumulated amortisation: RIS
At beginning of year iNZINCSE )
Provided during the year AN
Exchange realignment ERFHE

Net book value: IREFE

e
[l
Al
Al

At 31 March 2002

(&)
BREMEDURBALIATHBEOR
Bo

AEBZREMERBLEEGEME
WEAAARARIZRARAME %
MR_ZEE=F=A=+—HELIHA
7,700,000 (ZEE ZF B
8,000,0007T) *Z BEEERBLEAL
FREFE=F E—FTERIRITB
&5 KT 5E30(a)°

RZZET=F=RA=+—H Kx&EBEZ
BREME RETHHLHWREFT R
MERE BEEEEBRTUNSAEEE
BETRITER (H3E23) ©

Patents and
trademarks
HERERER
HK$’000
BT T

1,591
23
125

1,429
105

T _F=ZA=+—H 162




The amount of goodwill capitalised as an asset, arising

from the acquisition of a subsidiary during the year, is

RENERE— MM B AR FREE RS
ExEmBLEMT

as follows:
Group
58
HK$’000
BT T
Cost: YA
Acquisition of a subsidiary and at KWEWNBARER_EE=F
31 March 2003 (note 28(b)) = A=+—8 (K#280b)) 19,993
Accumulated amortisation: RETHEH:
Amortisation provided during the year NEE RN
and at 31 March 2003 ER—_ZEE=F=A=+—H (581)
Net book value: BREFE:

As detailed in note 3 to the financial statements, on the
adoption of SSAP 30, the Group applied the transitional
provision of SSAP 30 that permitted goodwill and
negative goodwill in respect of acquisitions which
occurred prior to 1 April 2001, to remain eliminated
against consolidated reserves or credited to the capital

reserve, respectively.

The amounts of goodwill and negative goodwill remaining
in consolidated reserves, arising from the acquisition of
subsidiaries prior to 1 April 2001, were HK$4,575,000
(2002: HK$4,575,000) and HK$1,097,000 (2002:
HK$1,097,000), respectively, as at 31 March 2003. The
amounts of the goodwill and negative goodwill which

arose in prior years are stated at cost.

AEBECRNTEG T B ERFE30M%
ZERGR ZEFAFAKREE_F
Z-FMA A ARBMEEZSE
ZRAERE DAERESSRETH
B BT F IR B IREMES -

AEEE-_TSET—FNA—HA ®E
AMBRARMELEZ HERABBED
PREGEHRBR 2B AEE
4,575,000 (Z T = F : B &K
4,575,0007T) & ##1,097,0007T (=&
T — 435 H1,097,0007T) c BIEEEE
EvEHERBERZESEIERAERA
/EEO



Notes to Financial Statements
B 1% R 5 B R T

31 March 2003 WZZZEZ=F=HA=+—H

15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted investments, at cost FELEMIRE KA
Due from subsidiaries FEUHI B 2 Al 2 R
Less: Provision for impairment JB B

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and are not repayable within twelve months.

The following table lists the particulars of the principal
subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 March 2003 which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.
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15. B A S #R

Company
N

2003 2002
—BE=HF —ETE_F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BB F T
118,249 118,249
80,260 81,368
(39,754) (39,754)
158,755 159,863

MU E AR 2 R EER 28
R+—EARTHEE-

TRAEARRAR_FE=F=A=
T—BZHBRANESERRHARF
EAXRSEXEEEEZEABREAE
B & EFE 2 EAERD o B2 E AL
BRRCHB EFERREBNTR



(Cont’d)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Name and operations
B3/ 5 R

DEEH ReE 2z

Directly held:

HERBRD:

Artfield Company British Virgin
Limited Islands

RBRAHES

Indirectly held:

FEERFERG:

Artfield Manufacturing Hong Kong
Company Limited B

HHEXERAQA

Artfield Industries PRC/
(Shenzhen) Ltd. Mainland
(“AlS”) China

wEEZE ORI REAR
BRAR Bl

Ultra Good Hong Kong
Electroplating &
Limited

HEERERAA

Nominal

value of

issued share/
registered
capital

8T
/BEMELREE

Ordinary
UsS$50,010
=Rl

Z£450,0107T

Ordinary
HK$1,000
Non-voting
deferred #
HK$2,000,000
T @R 8 % 1,0007T
REREEETER 4
75 #2,000,0007T

RMB46,000,000
A R ¥ 46,000,0007T

Ordinary
HK$4,000,000
LER

7 # 4,000,0007C

(4&)

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
FRREL

BRAER 2HD

2002
—2E-F

100

100

100

79.75

Principal
activities

TEXR

Investment
holding
REER

Manufacture
and marketing
of clocks
RERHERE

Manufacture
of clocks

RiERE

Provision of
electroplating
services

REEERS



(Cont’d)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Name and operations
B/ 5 R
NI w2

Indirectly held: (Cont’d)
FEERFRAERG: (&)

Ultra Good PRC/
Electroplating Mainland
Surface Finishing China
(Shenzhen) Co., REAR
Ltd. (“UG(S2)’) A

BEBERELE
(RY) BRAF

Dixon Design Limited British Virgin

Islands
RERIES

Wehrle Uhrenfabrik Germany
GmbH =

Precision Group British Virgin
Limited Islands

REBRAHES

City Bright Hong Kong

International Limited B

HEBFRAR AR

Nominal

value of

issued share/
registered
capital

28T
/EEMEXREE

US$600,000
%4 600,0007T

Ordinary
US$10,000
ik
%410,0007T

EUR255,646
BX 7T 255,646

Ordinary
US$437,000
=Rl

%4 437,0007C

Ordinary
HK$2,000,000
T3 %

75 2 000,0007T

(4&)

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
ERNRELL
BRAERZZE AL
2002

—ET_F

79.75

100

100

100

100

Principal
activities

FTEXEK

Provision of
electroplating
services

REEERS

Ownership

of patents and
trademarks
BEER®
KBz

Marketing of
clocks

HERE

Investment
holding
REER

Investment
holding
REER



(Cont’d)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Name and operations
B,/ E R
DEER 3§ 4

Indirectly held: (Cont’d)
FEEFERG: (&)

Everbright Lighting Hong Kong
Limited Bk

KHBEEFR DA

Everbright Lighting Hong Kong
(Hong Kong) B
Limited

KHBEER(FE)

BRAT]

City Bright Lighting PRC/
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Mainland
(“CBL(S2)") China

A ORI) REAR
BRAT] A

German Time Limited Hong Kong

EEEGFAERAR BB

Artfield Industries PRC/
(Gaoming) Ltd. Mainland
(“AIG”) China

BEHEX (5H) REAR

BR QA HAE

Nominal

value of

issued share/
registered
capital

28T
/EEMEXREE

Ordinary
HK$1,000,000
LER

% #1,000,0007C

Ordinary
HK$2
TR
AT

HK$3,000,000
7 #£ 3,000,0007C

Ordinary
HK$2,000,000
Rl

& # 2,000,0007C

HK$7,000,000
75 ¥ 7,000,0007T

(4&)

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
ERNRELL
BRAERZZE A
2002

—TE-F

100

100

100

100

100

Principal
activities

ETEXEK

Trading of
lighting
products

BEERHAEM

Trading of
lighting
products

BEERHAEM

Manufacture
of lighting
products

BUERPEM

Property
holding
REME

Manufacture
of wooden

products

BUEARE M



(Cont’d)

Place of
incorporation/
registration

Name and operations
B/ 5 R
NI w2

Indirectly held: (Cont’d)
FEEFERG: (B)

BLiE ¥3:13 PRC/
BR QA Mainland
(IHE2%%]) China

FEAR
HAE

East Champion
International Limited &

REBERERDA

Hong Kong

Right Time Group, Inc.  United States
of America
EFEREREH

Royal Success Hong Kong
Enterprises Limited B

EREXRARDA

Smart Best Hong Kong
Development B
Limited

KEERERDA

Nominal

value of

issued share/
registered
capital

28T
/EEMEXREE

HK$1,500,000
& #1,500,0007C

Ordinary
HK$1,200
=Rl

##1,2007T

US$10,000
%410,0007T

Ordinary
HK$4
Tk
AT

Ordinary
HK$4
Rl

B4

(4&)

Percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
ERNRELL
BRAERZZE AL
2002

—ET_F

100

100

100

100

100

Principal
activities

FTEXEK

Manufacture
and marketing
of clocks
BERHERE

Property
holding
REME

Marketing of
clocks
HERE

Investment
holding
HEER

Property
investment

MERE



(Cont’d)
Nominal
Place of value of
incorporation/ issued share/
registration registered
Name and operations capital
R/ TR 28T
DEEH Kezw¥% /EEMEAEE
Indirectly held: (Cont’d)
FEERERG: (&)
Ferdinand International United GBP10,000
(Marketing) Limited Kingdom 410,000
£
Lens Trading Inc. British Virgin US$1
(“Lens”) Islands/ EXE81T
Hong Kong
ERELEHE/
BB
Artfield Trading Hong Kong Ordinary
(Hong Kong) & HK$10,000
Limited gl
BEHES (FE) # #10,0007T
BRAT
mhEE ORI PRC/ HK$3,000,000
AR Mainland China 7 % 3,000,0007T
(I#&nl1) FEE AR AME

The non-voting deferred shares are entitled a fixed
non-cumulative dividend at the rate of 5% per annum
and a return of the paid-up capital after the distribution
of HK$100,000,000, but carry no rights to receive
notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting
of the company, or to participate in the profits or
assets of the company.

Subsidiary acquired during the year. For further
details, please refer to note 28(b) to the financial

statements.

Subsidiaries incorporated/established during the year.

AlS, UG(SZ), CBL(SZ), AIG, =B 2 % and £ ] are wholly
foreign-owned enterprises established in Mainland China.

(4&)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to Principal
the Company activities
NN 2
BAER 2B L TEXEEK
2002
—TT_F
100 Marketing of
clocks
HE R 2
- Trading of
metals
tEES
= Trading of
metals
tBES

- Manufacture of
clocks
BUER B

# A1 22 B AL R S R R R — 18]
FFSUTE R THRBERER
7E 73 R & #100,000,000 7T # £9 2
1 & A [0] 3 - 188 15 18 71 2 YL AT 1]
AAGIREA GBS HELIRE
RARB]ZREASHRELXLA]
ZFEREE-

* REXKEZHIBRF-FI1EZE
BIE M aF 28(b) °

" PERFTHILZHE A -

HHEX (RIDBERAR HEER
FEREE (RYIDBERAR HEEA
(RYIDBRLA HHEX (FH)F
BAG 2REEREANTIBRILIR
FERAREZINERERE.



Notes to Financial Statements
B 1% R 5 B R T

31 March 2008 RZ-ZEE=F=A=+—H
16. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY 16. L EIEHIEEER
Group
&
2003 2002
—EE=F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Share of net assets i & EFE - 527
Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity, which was REANREZHEREHER 2FBW
disposed of during the year, were as follows: T~
Place of Percentage of
registration Batt
Business and Ownership  Voting Profit Principal
Name structure operations interest power sharing activity
=R
ATAEH e 2L BEHE  RAEE REE UEAE TEEH
Shanghai Shen Ya Corporate PRC/ 48 40 48 Manufacture
Lacquerware Wooden NG Mainland of wooden
Products Co., Ltd. China products
(“SSY”) REAR SLEANRS M
FERERAE R A0 B
ERAA
17. INVENTORIES 17. B8
Group
3
2003 2002
—EE=F —ET_F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Raw materials R M 33,700 32,699
Work in progress ERM 37,278 30,135
Finished goods BURK i 10,485 11,762
81,463 74,596
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 15 R & I 5
31 March 2003 R-_ZETET=F=H=+—H

17. INVENTORIES (Cont’d)

No inventories were stated at net realisable value at 31

March 2003 (2002: Nil).

18. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts and bills

receivable as at the balance sheet date, based on the

date of goods delivered, is as follows:

Outstanding balances aged:

Within 90 days 90K K
Between 91 to 365 days 91K E365KIA
Over 1 year Bk

19. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

KT HIERR W R JE 8 2 4

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances

of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to approximately HK$2,156,000 (2002: HK$6,217,000).
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,

however,

under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange

Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,

Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the

Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies

through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange

business.

A

17. H& (&)
A—EE=F=A=+—A AEFH
HATEIRFEIE (BT F 8) -

18. [ W AR =k % FE W SR 4
AEERNGE B 2 BUERREKRER
ZERERDT (RIFHEAH) 0

Group
L]
2003 2002
—BE=HF —ETE_F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BB F T
%

39,112 35,986
22,265 16,612
134 547
61,511 53,145

19. RERBITHEE

REER AEBZARBERE RIRTT
ééﬁ%ﬁ%’ai%ﬁ%z,we,ooof_c(_gg:
7 #6,217,000) ARBEZTEBHY
BREEMEK. fEWE%FEPIﬂ*Z&I\

THREREE - SERNESERT
AEEERENEBETINEER 2R
THARBEBAEHMEK.-



Notes to Financial Statements
B 1% R 5 B R T

31 March 2008 RW-_ZEZE=F=HA=+—H
20. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 20. FEFTRRRXK
An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts payable as at AEBRGEER 2 ENERR KRB DT
the balance sheet date, based on the date of goods (BEBEWEBHH) T
received, is as follows:
Group
=
2003 2002
—EE=F —ZETT-
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Outstanding balances aged: TP EARR M R OE B 2 4 &R
Within 90 days 90Xk 17,491 7,815
Between 91 to 365 days 91K E 365K KA 1,191 899
Over 1 year tBiR1F 92 173
18,774 8,887
21. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 21. RITREMES
BORROWINGS
Group
SE
2003 2002
—EEZ= —EECF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BMTF T B F T
Bank overdrafts, secured BITE Y —H | 9,058 2,335
Trust receipt loans, secured ERWEER - FEF 18,492 17,718
Bank loans, secured and repayable: $BTER - AEMRAEEN:
Within one year —F R 7,768 7,777
In the second year E-FR 5,578 536
In the third to fifth years, E=FZAFRN
inclusive (RREEME) 4,089 1,715
Beyond five years iR A F 6,191 6,757
23,626 16,785
Other loans, unsecured and repayable: E b & 5 — S M BE B R
Within one year —FR 473 =
In the second year E-FR 99 =
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FEZAFN
(REEREME) 260 =
832 -
52,008 36,838
Portion classified as current DEERDEEZHHD
liabilities (35,791) (27,830)
Non-current portion E i UN=Er g ) 16,217 9,008
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 1% R 5 B R T

31 March 2003 R-ZEE=F=HF=+—H
21. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 21. SR1ITI8E (&)
BORROWINGS (Cont’d)
The Group’s other loans are unsecured, bear interest at REBEMERTEBER RFEF
5.0% to 6.5% per annum and are repayable by 12 to 53 E50%E6.5%TH AR _TT_F+
monthly instalments commencing in December 2002. —ARABUT—ER+ =@ A HKE
% o
22. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 22, FEFHEAFEFRLY
The Group leases certain of its plant and machinery for K%l AEKFEEMBEAS THEMKRE
its business operations. These leases are classified as B REEAZSEHOE B AUBKE
finance leases and have remaining lease terms at the A-ERTHAOBHAMEAZ =1 A @
balance sheet date ranging from 4 to 35 months. AT
At 31 March 20083, the total future minimum lease A—ETE=F=A=+—8 BENK
payments under finance leases and their present values, MO T2NFBERERESERN T
were as follows:
Group
&8
Present value of
Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments
BEAS BEAEREEE
2003 2002 2003 2002
—IZIT=HF ZEE-F —TIT=F ZETET-F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT BETT BT
Amounts payable: e RRIE
Within one year —FQR 1,286 512 1,221 489
In the second year BE-FN 441 157 421 155
In the third to fifth years, B=FERF
inclusive (RREEEME) 244 - 239 -
Total minimum finance B BEHENRE
lease payments ESL 1,971 669 1,881 644
Future finance charges HEREER (90) (25)
Total net finance FE 1 81 7% 1
lease payables N3 E 1,881 644
Portion classified as ABERE
current liabilities BEH R (1,221) (489)
Non-current portion ERBEEDH 660 155
—zz=8% 85 %o £ 8 FR



At 31 March 2003, the Group’s banking facilities were
supported by the following:

(@ a pledge of the Group’s fixed deposits of
HK$2,907,000 (2002: HK$2,540,000);

(b) legal charges over the Group’s investment
properties, certain of the Group’s leasehold land
and buildings and plant and machinery; and

(c) corporate guarantees from the Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

Balance at beginning of year iNZINCSE )
Credit for the year (note 9) RNEFEFEREE (M 29)
At 31 March MR=RA=+—H

The revaluation of the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings do not constitute timing differences and,
consequently, the amount of potential deferred tax
thereon has not been quantified.

Deferred tax has not been provided for the Company
(2002: Nil) and the Group (2002: Nil) because there were
no significant timing differences at the balance sheet
date.

ﬁ/\\_ggggzizﬁ Z—f——El ’K%Z
BIREEENTZXR:

(@) AL£E#E%2,907,000T (ZFF
—4F &% 2,540,0007T) E BT

(b) BEfEEAERMZAREZREY
£ ETROTRETREME
B R

€ ARBARETHBERARELZAF
R

Group

£H
2002
—EE &

—,E=s

HK$’000
BT

1,771
(1,771)

A B AT+ RIEFLTHER
B TG A AR IE

ERER RAEEEARE MARQR
—EE_F:E)RAERLE (ZF
ToFE) BIETEREELEE



Shares

vy
Number of
ordinary
shares of
HK$0.10 each
FREEE0.10T HK$'000
ZERROEAE BEFT
2002 2002
—ET_F —ET_F
Authorised: ETEMR A
Balance at beginning of year RENER=A=+—H
and at 31 March 2% 900,000,000 90,000
Issued and fully paid: BETREHMRRA:
Balance at beginning of year ~ REN 2 &E# 242,807,500 24,281
Shares repurchased B 7 B8 3 K% 51 88
and cancelled - -
At 31 March R=RA=+—H 242,807,500 24,281

During the year, the Company repurchased and cancelled
1,762,000 of its ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each from
the market at a total consideration of HK$1,077,000.
The premium of approximately HK$901,000 paid on the
repurchase of such shares has been debited to the share
premium account, as set out in note 27 to the financial

statements.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, in May 2003, the
Company repurchased a further 506,000 of its ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each on the Stock Exchange at a
total purchase consideration of HK$291,000 (note 32).

RERN ARAARTSULRRES
¥1,077,000C B B KT B R E BB
#0.107T 2 1,762,000 338 A I% (5 © B8 [l
A% 19 B 32 < 2 4 (B 7 % 901,000 T E
IR0 m BRI R mEH 27

HERR N_TT=FHA -A2AMN
R (BB 291,0007T KRBT HE — 2 FF
BE [0 & EE S #0.107T 2 506,000
WA AR D (BI7E32) ©



(Cont’d)

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are
included in note 26 to the financial statements.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 48,561,500
(2002: 48,561,500) warrants outstanding. Each warrant
entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one ordinary
share of HK$0.10 at a subscription price of HK$1.23
per share, payable in cash and subject to adjustment, at
any time within the period from 20 February 2004 to 1
March 2004 (both dates inclusive).

The exercise in full of such warrants would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 48,561,500 (2002: 48,561,500) additional shares
of HK$0.10 each for a total consideration, before
expenses, of approximately HK$59,731,000 (2002:
HK$59,731,000).

SSAP 34 was adopted during the year, as explained in
note 2 and under the heading “Employee benefits” in
note 3 to the financial statements. As a result, the
following detailed disclosures relating to the Company’s
share option scheme are now included in the notes to
the financial statements. In the prior year, these
disclosures were included in the Report of the Directors,
as their disclosures are also a requirement of the Listing
Rules.

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme are the directors and employees of the
Group. The Scheme became effective on 21 March 1995
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain

in force for 10 years from that date.

(4&)

AATRA 2 BRE B BERN T
4 25 Ff ¥ 26°

\

REEE B RA B 48,561,500/% (=
T — 4 :48,561,5000% ) RPEAEE - 5%
REEELRTFTERFBACZSENF =
AZt+HRBRE-_ZTEZENF=A—HL
(BRREEEMX) BIEAREMEEIZRITE
BEERE®1.23T (T TFHAE) URE
RE—BRARREREESEK0I0TZ
R

RERBARRZESAEB TE2HR
REFESI BB ITEREESEK010TZ
¥ 4N 48,561,500 (= & T —
F :48,561,5000%) A RET B AR
BH AB159,731,0007T (— 2T —4F:
5 #59,731,0007T) °

REARBEABEBERFE4R FB
XM E R B REMM B TEH
—EeEI ARAARARBREE 2K
BARERYERENE- EBREFE:
REBELTRAMZAEHEREEHNCH
AEFEHREERN-

ARBREBREE ([AFHE])
NS AREXBZREERERZA
BR2EEREER KR DEH-A5HE 2
RERSEEREASEESENESR-
ZAER - ANEF=ZA-+—BEL
R BR A B )7 S FESHSAE R S XA T &
B B R T FRDAERR



(Cont’d)
The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme is
an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the Scheme is limited to
2.5% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in
writing within 21 days from the date of the offer, with no
consideration being payable by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by
the directors, and commences from the date of grant of
the share options and ends on a date which is not later
than six years from the date of the commencement of
the exercise period of the share options or the expiry
date of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the higher of
the nominal value of the shares of the Company or 80%
of the average closing price of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the grant of the share
options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

Pursuant to the amendments (the “New Rules”) to
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, any options granted
after 1 September 2001 must comply with the provisions
of the New Rules. If the Company wishes to grant options
to its directors or other eligible participants in future, a
new share option scheme in compliance with the New
Rules is to be approved and adopted by the shareholders
of the Company in a general meeting. The options
remaining outstanding under the existing scheme remain
valid.
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(Cont’d)

The directors propose to terminate the Scheme and

adopt a new share option scheme, which will be in line

with the changes made to the Listing Rules in relation to

share option schemes, at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company.

The following share options were outstanding under the

Scheme during the year:

Name or
category of
participant
SHRERE
= E Bl

Directors

EF

Mr. LIANG Jin You
RERSTE

Ms. LI Kwo Yuk
FRERL

Mr. OU Jian Sheng
B4kt

Number of
share options
as at 1 April
2002 and

31 March 2003
BREHA
R=-BE=F
MA—-B K
—BE=F
=R=t-—H

2,306,000

2,836,000

5,766,000

10,908,000

Date of

grant of
share options
B IR A
FHAH

6 October 1999
—NNANE
+A7XHE

27 January 2000
—ETEE

—HAZ+tH

6 October 1999
—hNANE
+AXH

The exercise price of the share options is subject to

adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.
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Exercise

price of

Exercise period share

of share options options*

R R B

TR THEE"

HK$

BT

6 October 1999 to 0.2608
20 March 2005
—hAANETAREZE
ZETRF=ZR=1H

27 January 2000 to 0.6464
20 March 2005
—EETEF-A=-+tHZE
ZETRF=ZR=1H

6 October 1999 to 0.2608

20 March 2005
—WANE+ARAAZE
—EZRF=RA=+H
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(Cont’d)

At the balance sheet date, the Company had
10,908,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme.
The exercise in full of the remaining share options would,

under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 10,908,000 additional ordinary shares of

the Company and additional

share capital

of

approximately HK$1,091,000 and share premium of
approximately HK$2,847,000 (before issue expenses).

Group

£H

2003
—2E=F
At beginning of year

Disposal of fixed assets

Shares repurchased and
cancelled (note 25)

Exchange fluctuation reserve
released on disposal of a
jointly-controlled entity

Arising on translation of the
financial statements of
overseas subsidiaries

Net profit for the year

RAREA]
HEATEE
ROMOBE RS (W)

HEXREHER
nELEXRE
1

BEBIMELAZ
HBREELL
ExZ2

KEREH

Property

Share revaluation

premium
account
R&ER
HK$'000
B¥Tr

reserve
EE

iR
HK$'000
AR

(#%&)
REEB A2 REZTEE
10,908,00017 i A% # 18 R 17 3£ « IR B A
NRABRITZRAGERE BEITEERIT
i 2 F& x 1 AT B BUEE SN 8617 10,908,000
[ N/NET W -l N ) | ) i N >
# 1,091,000 & & 0 & B &9 8
¥ 2,847,000 (RINKREITEA) -

Reserve and
enterprise
expansion  Exchange

funds fluctuation

Capital f#ER  reserve  Retained

reserve  L¥ER  EXRD profits Total
BAff B¢ i REERN ag
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
B¥Tn  E¥Fn E¥Fn BT BETR




B 1% R 5 B R T

(Cont’d) (&)
Group
£8
2002
—EE_F
Reserve and
enterprise
Property expansion  Exchange
Share  revaluation funds  fluctuation
premum  reseve  Capital  G#ER  reseve  Retained
account  MIEEM  reserve LEEE  EXREH profits Total
R E e Z1EE £% e RERT 2%
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
AETT EEFT EEFT BEFT BB BETT AETT
At beginning of year RAES) 26,262 26,160 42,516 8,884 (2,398) 76455 177,879
Transfer to reserve and ERERER
enterprise expansion funds PEERES - - = 232 = (232) =
Arising on translation of BEBNIBAR
the financial statements BBREEEL
of overseas subsidiaries EXzZE - = = = (%) = (%0)
Net loss for the year rEEEE - - - - - (2806)  (2,806)
At 31 March 2002 R-EE-#=A=1+-AH 26,262 26,160 42,516 9,116 (2,488) 73,417 174,983
Reserves retained by: FBRERN:
Company and subsidiaries RARKBAR 26,262 26,160 42,516 9,116 (1,903) 74,100 176,260
Jointly-controlled entity HAEHER - - - - (585) (692)  (1,277)
At 31 March 2002 R-EE-#=A=1+-AH 26,262 26,160 42,516 9,116 (2,488) 73,417 174,983
Certain amounts of goodwill and negative goodwill arising REF ABANBARMEELE CHE
on the acquisition of subsidiaries in prior years remain LEEBEER S R HREIRE & FIE
eliminated against consolidated retained profits and IR A BN E R RN E14 -

credited to the capital reserve, respectively, as explained
in note 14.
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(Cont’d)

In accordance with PRC regulations, all of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to transfer part of
their profit after tax to the reserve and enterprise
expansion funds, which are non-distributable, before
profit distributions are made. The amounts of the
transfers are subject to the approval of the boards of
directors of these companies in accordance with their
joint venture agreements and/or articles of association.

(&)
RETEZBBGN AEERTEZ
B 8 2 B) 75 48 3 L AR 40 BR A 1R a8 M) B 1+
BREXRBRES ZHEERBHE
DIRA RTEED IR PR 2 &5
TREESEHER RARERHZ
ERFEzEZGHE

Company
N
Share
premium Contributed Accumulated
account surplus losses Total
RAEE BAER 2EER ok
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2001 W-ET-4MA—H 26,262 128,013 (18,440) 135,835
Net loss for the year ZEEFER - = (811) (811)
At 31 March 2002 and RZZE=F=A=+—H
1 April 2002 —“ET-FNA—H 26,262 128,013 (19,251) 135,024
Shares repurchased and % 17 B | R 5t 8
cancelled (note 25) (ffiz25) (901) = = (901)
Net profit for the year KEEFRF - - 328 328

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange for the issued shares of the
companies being acquired and the value of net assets
of the underlying companies acquired at the time of the
Group’s reorganisation in preparation for its listing in
1995. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
Company may make distributions to its members out of
the contributed surplus in certain circumstances.

ARBZBABBER-NANEFAE
BAEELMMETERRS XA/
BB AR 2B BT M EITA
NERD 2 EEEMEBERBAREE
FEZER-BREERE-NAN-F2Q
LA ARE A RIBR LB DK ZR
BABRBTRR-



SSAP 15 (Revised) was adopted during the current
year, as detailed in note 2 to the financial
statements, which has resulted in a change to the
layout of the consolidated cash flow statement. The
consolidated cash flow statement is now presented
under three headings: cash flows from operating
activities, investing activities and financing activities.
Previously five headings were used, comprising the
three headings listed above, together with cash flows
from returns on investments and servicing of finance
and from taxes paid. The significant reclassifications
resulting from the change in presentation are that
taxes paid, interest and dividends received, and
interest and dividends paid are now included in cash
flows from operating activities. The presentation of
the comparative amounts of consolidated cash flow
statement for the year ended 31 March 2002 has

been changed to accord with the new layout.

Also, the definition of “cash equivalents” under the
revised SSAP 15 has been revised from that under
the previous SSAP 15, as explained under the
heading “Cash and cash equivalents” in note 3 to
the financial statements. This has resulted in trust
receipt loans no longer qualifying as cash
equivalents. The amount of cash equivalents in the
consolidated cash flow statement at 31 March 2002
has been adjusted to remove trust receipt loans
amounting to HK$17,718,000, previously included
as cash and cash equivalents at that date. The
current year’s movement in trust receipt loans is
now included in cash flows from financing activities
and the comparative cash flow statement has been
changed accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% 5 BT oE

31 March 2008 RW-_ZEZE=F=HA=+—H

28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (Cont’d)

Net assets acquired:
Fixed assets
Other receivables

Goodwill on acquisition

Satisfied by:
Cash

Pz EEFME:
EE & E
H Al & U R I8

g

SR
Re

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash

equivalents in respect of the acquisition of a

subsidiary/business is as follows:

Cash consideration paid
and payable
Cash consideration payable

Net outflow of cash and
cash equivalents
in respect of acquisition
of a subsidiary/business

ENRENREKE
ENREENKE
RERKBHBAR,

EBRHEREER
ReSEFR

I
A
A

Notes

Ff i

12

14

2003
—EE=F
HK$°000
YT

19,993

20,000

20,000

28. EREREBRME (&)

2002
—FE-F
HK$’000
BT T

606

606

606

606

WEHELR,/ EBERERAERR

TEEFEZOMET:
2003 2002
—BB=F e et

HK$7000 HK$'000
BETR EETFT
(20,000) (606)

2,600 -
(17,400) (606)




Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% R MY 5

31 March 2003 R-_ZTZE =14

7:‘77 H

28. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Cont’d)
(Cont’d)

On 16 August 2002, the Group acquired the entire

issued capital of Lens from an independent third

party. Lens is engaged in the distribution of metals.

The purchase consideration for the acquisition was

in the form of cash, with HK$17,400,000 being paid

during the year and the remaining balance included

in other payables at 31 March 20083.

Since its acquisition, Lens contributed
HK$2,150,000 to the Group’s turnover and
HK$594,000 to the consolidated profit after tax and
before minority interests for the year ended 31 March
2003.

The business acquired during the year ended 31
March 2002 contributed approximately
HK$17,082,000 to the Group’s turnover and
approximately HK$446,000 to the consolidated loss
after tax for that year.

29. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

28. ZEBHERERME (&)

(#%&)
RZTEZFNA+ B A%H
BBLE=FWE [Lens] 223
A LensEZRHEBH i W&
ZREURESINF REAFEEX
74 %17,400,0007T - SR EE B IETE
R-EE=F=ZA=+—HzZHf
FE AT BR 3R o

BliER RZTET=F=A=+
—BLEFE LensBAEEERY
B #2,150,00070 2 L X R M 475
#594,0007T 2 RET D HR R =
AT BR B 1B AR & s ) o

 E_TE_F=ZA=+—HItF
S RAFERARBZEL BREAE
BB B 4E%17,082,000T 2 & ¥
B8 N #4975 446,000 2 B Bt 18 47

BB

T i

29. REE

Group Company
-3 N

2003 2002 2003 2002

—EE=HF _ZTT_F ZETE=ZF _TT_F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

EBETT BT T BT T BT T

Bills discounted with recourse Fff 18 R 4% 2 Bh 3R = i - 517 - -
Guarantees provided for RETHEBRARER

banking facilities and finance $R{TEE R

leases utilised by certain MH ML 2 E R

subsidiaries - - 44,143 30,251

- 517 44,143 30,251
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The Group leases certain of its properties (note 12)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years.
The terms of the leases generally also require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At 31 March 2003, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as
follows:

Within one year —F R
In the second to fifth years, —FEEERF
inclusive (BHEEEMFEEAN)

The Group leases certain of its office properties
and staff quarters under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated
for terms ranging from one to six years.

At 31 March 2003, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

Within one year —F A
In the second to fifth years, HF - FZFERHF
inclusive

The Company did not have any operating lease
arrangements at the balance sheet date (2002: Nil).

(BERERMEEAN)

RELLHEOREE AKEHR LA
TETYE(ME12) HLOHHA—
FE=ZFIAZE-HOKKITERM
FRgNT € RERBAMSREM
EHBSFHE-

R-EZE=F=A=+—B"RHA
TEHF?E/%ZTTHX/E%“%THZ’JE
AR ZEBLEERNAT

Group

]
2002
—ETF
HK$’000
BT T

969
1,150

2,119

BEEEHROTHE AEEHEAE
THAZMERBEES HOK
HH—FENELE-

R-FBFE=F=ZA=1t—8 1R
THREER 2 AR EROE
AR EBRONRAT

Group

]
2002
—ET-F
HK$’000
BT T

376
184

560

REER ARRELRAEMEEMEY
E7g 7S (_E’E_iiﬁ) 0



In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 30 above, the Group had the following

commitments at the balance sheet date:

(@) a contracted commitment of HK$2,000,000 (2002:
Nil) in respect of an investment in a subsidiary in
Mainland China.

(b) contracted commitments of HK$4,476,000 (2002:
HK$4,318,000) in respect of construction in
progress in Mainland China.

The Company had no significant commitments at the
balance sheet date (2002: Nil).

Subsequent to balance sheet date, the Company
repurchased certain of its own shares through the Stock
Exchange as further described in note 25 to the financial

statements.

As further explained in note 2 to the financial statements,
due to the adoption of certain new and revised SSAPs
during the current year, the accounting treatment and
presentation of certain items and balances in the financial
statements have been revised to comply with the new
requirements. Accordingly, certain comparative amounts
have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s
presentation.

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 30 July 2003.
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A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities,
and minority interests of the Group for the last five financial

years is set out below.

TURNOVER

PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Share of profits less losses of:

Associates

Jointly-controlled entities

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

Tax

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE
MINORITY INTERESTS

Minority interests

NET PROFIT/(LOSS)
ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS

LES

REEA,/ (BHR)

FEA

i
B

NY]
b

MR B -

o=
LS
D
2z

y
4
ol
s
Elia
i
i

BREAER (BR)

"E

Rt D BRRER
AER /(B8R

DEBRE S

RRELFER
(B#R) #E

Year ended 31 March
BZ=B=1t-HLEE

AEEBERAEPBRFEZEAMELA B
ENBERLDBERRESDOT

2002 2001 2000 1999
“$F-F  -TT-F C-TIEE  -ANAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETIT BETT BETT BETIT
272,556 284,202 275,001 259,339
(3,591) 5,092 7,680 (12,677)

- - - 86

(485) 140 108 (452)
(4,076) 5,232 7,788 (13,043)
1,915 9 (2,378) (2,888)
(2,161) 5,328 5,410 (15,931)
(645) (998) (1,197) 1,056
(2,806) 4,330 4,213 (14,875)




Five Year Financial Summary
hFB %2

As at 31 March 2003 R-_ZEZE=F=H=1T—~H

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS BEREBBRVEBREES

31 March
R=A=+-H
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
“2%=Ff C—ZT-f C"TT-F C—ZTETFE -AANF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000

BEFT EETT EETT EETT EETT

FIXED ASSETS EEEE 114,892 112,717 102,159 109,432 108,960
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES ~ Bi#& 1\ 7% - - - - 196
INTERESTS IN JOINTLY- REZHERES
CONTROLLED ENTITIES - 527 (80) 2,370 1,446
PATENTS AND TRADEMARKS BRI #R & & 80 162 253 409 774
GOODWILL BE 19,412 = = = =
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE 160,116 148,444 151,034 132,780 134,169
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 294,500 261,850 253,366 244,991 245,545
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE 69,371 47,244 42,949 39,970 71,375
LONG TERM LIABILITIES REEE 16,877 9,163 749 598 2,327
DEFERRED TAX BEEHE - - 1,771 1,771 1,771
TOTAL LIABILITIES BaE 86,248 56,407 45,469 42,339 75,473
MINORITY INTERESTS SERRER 6,556 6,179 5,737 5,144 8,545
201,696 199,264 202,160 197,508 161,527
SHARE CAPITAL AND RAREE
RESERVES 201,696 199,264 202,160 197,508 161,527
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ARTFIELD GROUP LIMITED
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(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)
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